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BE IT REMEMBERED THAT THERE IS BEGUN AND HELD THE REGULAR
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PETAL,
MISSISSIPPI ON JANUARY 19, 1999 AT 7:00 P.M. 1IN THE BOARD ROOM OF
SAID CITY.

THOSE PRESENT MAYOR JACK GAY
CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS W. TYNER
ALDERMEN WILLIE W. HINTON

CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ROBERT F. LANGFORD
DONALD H. ROWELL
LEROY SCOTT

OTHERS PRESENT LINDA ALGOOD
WILLOUGHBY WRIGHT
CHIEF RODNEY JARRELL
CHIEF AUBRA EVANS
CAPTAIN ROY JOHNSON

THE MAYOR DECLARED A QUORUM PRESENT AND DECLARED THE CITY
COUNCIL IN SESSION.

THE INVOCATION WAS OFFERED BY WILLIE HINTON.

THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE WAS RECITED.

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE AGENDA TO THE BOARD WITH THE
FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:

X. GENERAL BUSINESS

DELETE:

3. MR. TROY FLOWERS CONCERNING RESOLUTION ON CLEAN-UP
OF PROPERTY ON WOODSIDE DRIVE

CHANGE:

15. TO HIRE CHARLES SUGGS AS A DISPATCHER IN THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT EFFECTIVE JANUARY 20, 1999

ADD:

26. PROMOTE OFFICER DAVID BASSETT TO PATROLMAN 1ST CLASS
27. PROMOTE OFFICER 1ST CLASS WILLIAM KING TO SERGEANT
28. PROMOTE OFFICER 1ST CLASS BRIAN MORSE TO SERGEANT

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE AGENDA
WITH THE FOREGOING AMENDMENTS. ALDERMAN HOLBROOK SECONDED THE
MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR

MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PETAL,
MISSISSIPPI OF JANUARY 5, 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN ROWELL MADE A MOTION THAT MINUTES OF THE
REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF JANUARY 5,
1999 BE ACCEPTED AS WRITTEN. ALDERMAN SCOTT SECONDED THE MOTION.
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THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY CALLED FOR PUBLIC COMMENT BUT THERE WAS
NONE.

WHEREAS, LINDA ALGOOD REQUESTED THAT THE BOARD CONSIDER
REQUIRING A BUILDING PERMIT AND A CITY INSPECTION FOR CONTRACTORS
INSTALLING ROOFING AND SIDING BECAUSE OF AN UNFORTUNATE EXPERIENCE
SHE HAD WITH AN UNLICENSED CONTRACTOR. MS. ALFOOD STATED THAT
HAD THE CONTRACTOR BEEN REQUIRED BY CITY ORDINANCE TO HAVE A PERMIT
AND THE CITY INSPECTOR TO PASS ON HIS WORK SHE WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN
THREATENED AND INTIMIDATED INTO PAYING FOR THE SHODDY WORKMANSHIP
SHE WAS LEFT WITH.

THEREUPON, MAYOR GAY REQUESTED THAT THE CITY INSPECTOR
RESEARCH EXISTING ORDINANCES AND THE ORDINANCES OF OTHER CITIES AND
TO REPORT BACK ON WHAT THE CITY WILL NEED TO ADOPT TO MAKE THE
PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS FOR ROOFING AND SIDING A REQUIREMENT.

WHEREAS, WILLOUGHBY C. WRIGHT, CPA, OF WRIGHT, KING AND
COMPANY, P.A., PRESENTED THE AUDIT OF THE CITY’S FUNDS FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 1998.

SEE EXHIBIT "A"
AUDIT 1998-99

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HINTON MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE AUDIT
OF THE CITY'’S FUNDS. ALDERMAN SCOTT SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "“AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE ENGINEERING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY¥ OF PETAL AND SHOWS, DEARMAN AND WAITS FOR THE 1998 °
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT #8-295-PF-01.
SEE EXHIBIT "B"
AGREEMENT
THEREUPON, ALDERMAN ROWELL MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PETAL AND
SHOWS, DEARMAN AND WAITS. ALDERMAN LANGFORD SECONDED THE MOTION.
THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":
ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
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NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING PROOFS OF
PUBLICATION TO THE BOARD.

A) PUBLIC NOTICE
B) PUBLIC NOTICE
C) PUBLIC NOTICE

ZONING HEARING BRADY INGRAM

ZONING HEARING THOMAS CRAIG

ZONING HEARING RONNIE EDWARDS AND DICKIE
CARPENTER

CDBG HEARING

i

D) PUBLIC NOTICE

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HINTON MADE A MOTION THAT THE FOREGOING
PROOFS OF PUBLICATION BE ACCEPTED AND FILED. ALDERMAN HOLBROOK
SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY STATED THAT THE WATER RELOCATION BIDS FOR
THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT OPENED ON
NOVEMBER 3, 1998 HAVE BEEN TABULATED AND THE CITY ENGINEER HAS
RECOMMENDED THAT C. J. MORGAN, INC. BE AWARDED THE WATER
RELOCATION BID IN THE AMOUNT OF $102,413.31

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE NOTICE OF AWARD TO C. J. MORGAN, INC.
ALDERMAN LANGFORD SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY STATED THAT THE SANITARY SEWER RELOCATION
BID FOR THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT OPENED
ON NOVEMBER 3, 1998 HAS BEEN TABULATED AND THE CITY ENGINEER HAS
RECOMMENDED THAT BOWIE RIVER CONSTRUCTION, INC. BE AWARDED THE BID
IN THE AMOUNT OF $108,497.32.. 4

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE NOTICE OF AWARD TO BOWIE RIVER CONSTRUCTION,
INC. ALDERMAN ROWELL SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":
ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE
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WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE REQUEST FROM FIRE CHIEF
EVANS TO INCREASE THE MONTHLY PAY FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT TRAINING
OFFICER TO $100.00 PER MONTH.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HINTON MADE A MOTION TO PAY THE TRAINING
OFFICER IN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT $100.00 PER MONTH FOR HIS DUTIES.
ALDERMAN LANGFORD SCONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A LETTER OF RESIGNATION FROM
PATROLMAN RICHARD PERKINS EFFECTIVE JANUARY 30, 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HOLBROOK MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT MR.
PERKINS LETTER OF RESIGNATION. ALDERMAN ROWELL SECONDED THE
MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "“AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A LETTER OF RESIGNATION FROM
PATROLMAN MICHAEL DUPREE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 14, 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HOLBROOK MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT MR.

DUPREES LETTER OF RESIGNATION. ALDERMAN ROWELL SECONDED THE
MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A LETTER OF RESIGNATION FROM
POLICE DISPATCHER SUE ELLEN BROADHEAD EFFECTIVE JANUARY 15, 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT MS.
BROADHEAD’S RESIGNATION. ALDERMAN HOLBROOK SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
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NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A LETTER OF RESIGNATION FROM
SGT. ALVIN MILLER EFFECTIVE JANUARY 25, 1999.

THEREUPON, ALEDERMAN ROWELL MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT SGT.
MILLER’S LETTER OF RESIGNATION. ALDERMAN HOLBROOK SECONDED THE
MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING ORDER HIRING TARA
BARNES AS DISPATCHER EFFECTIVE JANUARY 20, 1999.

ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY TO HIRE A DISPATCHER
TO FILL THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF MARK BULLOCK.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT TARA BARNES BE HIRED AS A
DISPATCHER AT A RATE OF $6.80 PER HOUR EFFECTIVE JANUARY 20, 1999.

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN LANGFORD MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOREGOING ORDER. ALDERMAN SCOTT SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING ORDER HIRING
CHARLES SUGGS AS A DISPATCHER IN THE POLICE DEPARTMENT EFFECTIVE
JANUARY 20, 1999.

ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY TO HIRE A DISPATCHER
TO FILL THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF SUE ELLEN
BROADHEAD.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT CHARLES SUGGS BE HIRED AS A
DISPATCHER AT A RATE OF $6.80 PER HOUR EFFECTIVE JANUARY 20, 1999.

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOREGOING ORDER HIRING CHARLES SUGGS. ALDERMAN LANGFORD SECONDED
THE MOTION.
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THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING ORDER HIRING CARL
GRIFFIN AS PATROLMAN 4TH CLASS EFFECTIVE JANUARY 31, 1999.

ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY TO HIRE AN OFFICER
TO FILL THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF OFFICER RICHARD
PERKINS.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT CARL GRIFFIN BE HIRED AS A
PATROLMAN 4TH CLASS AT A RATE OF $18,600.00 ANNUALLY EFFECTIVE
JANUARY 31, 1999.

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HINTON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOREGOING ORDER. ALDERMAN HOLBROOK SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH WELLNESS AND SPORTS MEDICINE TO PROVIDE THE AEROBIC SESSIONS
FOR THE SENIOR CITIZENS AT A RATE OF $15.00 PER SESSION.

SEE EXHIBIT "cC"
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE WELLNESS
AND SPORTS MEDICINE INSTITUTE. ALDERMAN LANGFORD SECONDED THE
MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A GROUND LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY

OF PETAL AND MARTHA HAMILTON FOR HER PROPERTY ON FAIRCHILD DRIVE

THAT THE CITY UTILIZES FOR PRACTICE FIELDS FOR BASEBALL AND
SOFTBALL.
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SEE EXHIBIT "D"
GROUND LEASE

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE GROUND LEASE AND TO PAY MRS. HAMILTON $700.00
FOR THE LEASE. ALDERMAN LANGFORD SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A REQUEST FROM THE PETAL GIRLS
SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION FOR THE CITY TO PURCHASE SIGNS FOR
AVERTISEMENT.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HOLBROOK MADE A MOTION TO TAKE THIS
MATTER UNDER ADVISEMENT. ALDERMAN HINTON SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING ORDER INCREASING
MARTY DENHAM’S PAY TO $6.75 PER HOUR SINCE HE HAS COMPLETED HIS ONE
YEAR ANNIVERSARY.

ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY DUE TO REACHING HIS
FIRST ANNIVERSARY TO INCREASE MARTY DENHAM’S PAY TO $6.75 PER HOUR.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT MARTY DENHAM’S PAY BE INCREASED TO
THE RATE OF $6.75 PER HOUR EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 2, 1999.

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HOLBROOK MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOREGOING ORDER INCREASING MARTY DENHAM’S PAY. ALDERMAN ROWELL
SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A REQUEST FOR MARTY DENHAM TO BE

TRANSFERRED FROM THE SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT TO THE WATER DEPARTMENT
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 25, 1999.
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THEREUPON, ALDERMAN LANGFORD MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
TRANSFER OF MARTY DENHAM. ALDERMAN HINTON SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING ORDER HIRING
RODNEY SESSIONS IN THE STREET DEPARTMENT.

ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY TO HIRE A LABORER
IN THE STREET DEPARTMENT.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT RODNEY SESSIONS BE HIRED AS A
LABORER IN THE STREET DEPARTMENT AT A RATE OF $6.25 PER HOUR
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 25, 1999.

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HOLBROOK MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOREGOING ORDER. ALDERMAN ROWELL SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY STATED THAT THE WATER DEPARTMENT IS IN
NEED OF A DUMP TRUCK.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY
CLERK TO ADVERTISE FOR A NEW 1999 DUMP TRUCK FOR THE WATER
DEPARTMENT. ALDERMAN HINTON SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "“NAY":
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A REQUEST FOR THE CITY TO
PURCHASE TICKETS FOR THE CITY OFFICIALS TO ATTEND THE CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE ANNUAL BANQUET ON FEBRUARY 1, 1999.
THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO PURCHASE TICKETS

TO THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ANNUAL BANQUET. ALDERMAN LANGFORD
SECONDED THE MOTION.
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THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER TO THE BOARD.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN ROWELL MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER. ALDERMAN
SCOTT SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A REQUEST FROM THE CHIEF OF
POLICE THAT THE BOARD PROMOTE PATROLMAN DAVID BASSETT TO THE RANK
OF FIRST CLASS PATROLMAN.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HOLBROOK MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOLLOWING ORDER PROMOTING PATROLMAN BASSETT. ALDERMAN LANGFORD
SECONDED THE MOTION.

ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY DUE TO THE
RECOMMENDATION BY CHIEF JARRELL AND THE COMPLETION OF THE
REQUIREMENTS TO PROMOTE DAVID BASSETT TO PATROLMAN FIRST CLASS.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT DAVID BASSETT’S PAY BE INCREASED TO
THE RATE OF $21,600.00 ANNUALLY EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 1, 1999.

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":
ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A REQUEST FROM THE CHIEF OF
POLICE TO PROMOTE OFFICER WILLIAM KING TO THE RANK OF SERGEANT.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HINTON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOLLOWING ORDER. ALDERMAN HOLBROOK SECONDED THE MOTION.
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ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY DUE TO THE
RECOMMENDATION BY CHIEF JARRELL AND THE COMPLETION OF THE
REQUIREMENTS TO PROMOTE OFFICER WILLIAM KING TO THE RANK OF
SERGEANT.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT WILLIAM KING’S PAY BE INCREASE TO
THE RATE OF $22,600.00 ANNUALLY EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 1, 1999,

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED A REQUST FROM THE CHIEF OF
POLICE FOR THE BOARD TO PROMOTE OFFICER BRIAN MORSE TO THE RANK OF
SERGEANT.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN LANGFORD MADE A MOTION TO AIOPT TH
FOLLOWING ORDER. ALDERMAN HOLBROOK SECONDED THE MOTION.

ORDER

WHEREAS, THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PETAL, MISSISSIPPI DO HEREBY DEEM IT NECESSARY DUE TO THE
RECOMMENDATION BY CHIEF JARRELL AND THE COMPLETION OF THE
REQUIREMENTS TO PROMOTE OFFICER BRIAN MORSE TO THE RANK OF
SERGEANT.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT BRIAN MORSE’S PAY BE INCREASED TO
THE RATE OF $22,600.00 ANNUALLY EFFECTIVE FEBUARY 1, 1999.

SO ORDERED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":
ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":

NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION
PROCLAIMING FEBRUARY 12, 1999, AS ARBOR DAY.

SEE EXHIBIT "“E"
RESOLUTION

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN SCOTT MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE
FOREGOING RESOLUTION. ALDERMAN LANGFORD SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
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NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR GAY PRESENTED THE PRIVILEGE LICENSE REPORT FOR
THE MONTH OF DECEMBER TO THE BOARD FOR THEIR CONSIDERATION.

WHEREAS, CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS W. TYNER REQUESTED AN
EXECUTIVE SESSION WITH THE BOARD.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN HINTON MADE A MOTION TO CLOSE THE MEETING
TO DETERMINE IF AN EXECUTIVE SESSION WAS NEEDED. ALDERMAN SCOTT
SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE
THEREUPON, MAYOR GAY REOPENED THE MEETING AS IT WAS
DETERMINED THAT AN EXECUTIVE SESSION WAS NOT NECESSARY.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN ROWELL MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN.
ALDERMAN SCOTT SECONDED THE MEETING.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "AYE":

ALDERMAN WILLIE W. HINTON
ALDERMAN CHARLES E. HOLBROOK
ALDERMAN ROBERT F. LANGFORD
ALDERMAN DONALD H. ROWELL
ALDERMAN LEROY SCOTT

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING "NAY":
NONE
THEREBEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE

MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI WAS
ADJOURNED ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D., 1999.

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

PRISCILLA C. DANIEL
CITY CLERK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

I T - _ s ~ e~ —tanc
Wright, King and Company, P.A.
Certified Public Accountanis
#10 Plaza Drive
P.O. Box 16433
Hattiesburg, MS 39402
(601) 268-3135 (601) 2613922 - Fax
* Douglas A. King, CPA Members
¢ Willoughby C. Wright, CPA . American Institute of
Marcia N. Wright, CPA Certified Public Accountants
1 —cvaaasaes
Ann Scott Henderson, CPA Mississippi Society of
Samantha J. Kirschbaum, CPA Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Petal, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Petal, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 1998, as listed in the table of contents, These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Petal,
Mississippi, management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financtal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the City of Petal, Mississippi, as of September 30, 1998, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and
nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Independent Auditors' Report
Page Two
December 21, 1998

g}:p::: gg :d:‘::;r:ln anall,).'sisst::d arenota requutd part of the general purpose financial statements of the City of Petal, Mississippi. Such
opioim o ba subjected to the faudmng proced. ures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and in our
p: » 1§ Lairly presented in all materiaf respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole '

WRIGHT, KING AND COMPANY, P.A.
Hattiesburg, Mississippi
December 21, 1998
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EXHIBIT "“A"

Ry
;
FINANCIAL REPORTS B
e e o 9
EXHIBIT A H
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI. %
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET e
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS : %
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 o
———Governmental Fund Types j —Account Groups Total
Special Debt Trust and Fixed  Long-Term {(Memorandum t
ASSETS ~General  _Revenue . _Service Enterprise  _Assncy —Ametn  _Debt ~Only) - _ ;
Cash & other deposits $707,123 $202,121  $645947 $ 521,591 $ 60,525 H - S - $2,137,307 N
Receivables (net of allowance) - 67,667 - 123,469 - - - 191,136 ;
Franchise fees receivable 45,127 . - . . - - 45,127
Due from other 93,691 6,486 4,158 - - - - 109,338
Due from other 4,677 - - 106,368 - - - 111,545
Prepaid expenses - . - 1,085 - - . 1,085
Inventory, st cost 1,536 . - 35,512 - - . 37,048
Restricted assets - - - is24amn - - - 3152477
Fixed assets - - - 3,573,997 - 8,444,965 - 12,018,692
Other assets . . - 42,003 . - - 42,003
Availsble for debt service - - . - . - 649,980 649,980
Amount :p be provided for t:;-
ment of general long-term — - - : — = 1686334 _L.686.354
Total Assets ABILIN  R76274 3630003 56972  $605% 4§46 Raeais $17.382.059,
LIABILITIES
Bills docketed $74,479 $61,359 $128 $92,128 $593 s - s - $ 228,684
Due to other funds 9,297 - - 102,243 E] - - 111,545
Other payables 81,326 - - 4,825 45,476 - - 131,627
Accrued interest on bonds - - - 3,615 - - - 8,615
Customer deposits - . - 106,855 - - - 106,855
Notes payable - - . - . - 25,000 25,000
Revenue bonds paysbie - - - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
General obligation bonds payable - - . - - - 1,730,000 1,730,000
Abatement notes payable - - - 863,031 . - - 863,031
Certificate olfe participation - - - - - - 425,000 425,000
Lease - - - 11460 - . 156334 182,794
Total Liabilities J65.002 . SL339 ~J23 2209157 46074 — 336334 AR18.151
EXHIBIT A(CONTINUED)
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
September 30, 1998
— Govemmental Fund Types~  Proscdietary  Fiduciary. —Ascount Groups —TJoml
Special Debt Trust and Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum
EQ General _Reveoue  _Service . Enterpeise Agency —Atsts Dbt —Only)
Contributed capital - - 176,886 - - - 176,886
Investment in general fixed assets B - - 8,444,695 - 8,444,695
Reserved for debt service - - - 413,204 - - - 413,204
Reserved for repair and replacement . - - 58,543 . - - 58,543
- . . 1,899,182 - - - 1,899,182
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for inventory 1,536 - - - - - - 1,536
Reserved for ad valorem tax escrow 14,976 - - - . - 14976
Reserved for unemployment - . - - 14,451 - - 14,451
Reserved for debt service - - 649,980 - - - - 649,980
Unreserved 675540 214915 - - - . .
Total Fund Equity £92052 214915 649930 2347415 14431 244608 . ~12.563.908
Tow! Lisbilities and Fund Equity 830,054  §276274  $630108 $4236972 60523,  $2444695 $2336334 12382030

LY
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR l'HE. ¥%¥ Eﬂ)f&,SEP,’ﬂMBER 30, 1998
Fiduciary Fund Tvpes. Total
Special Debt (Memorandum
—General i ~—Expendable Trust
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 556,774 s - $538,721 s - $1,095,495
Penalties and interest 2,730 . - - 2,730
Licenses and permits 46,285 B - - 46,285
Franchise fees 188,894 - - - 188,894
Homestead exemption 45,998 - - - 45,998
State share revenue
Sales tax 1,065,900 - - - 1,065,900
Alcoholic bevelrlge tax 900 - - - 900
tergovernmental
. (?l:oline t:;: 9,874 - - - 9,874
Municipal aid 4,398 - - - 4,398
Other 24,597 148,181 - . 172,778
Culture and recreation 66,062 - - - 66,062
Fines and forfeits 79,779 - - - 79,779
Charges for services 1,976 N B - 1,976
Interest eamed 24,120 4,469 19,105 oo 47,921
Grants 53,182 19971 - - 733:
Sale of equipment 4,628 - - . S
Other P 2243 .- —_— A2
Total Revenues 2198531 1R@L 35786 —21 2929203
EXPENDITURES:
General government 450,043 - - - 450,043
Public safety 979,193 203,287 - - 1,182,480
Public works 387,811 142,959 - - 530,770
Culture and recreation 223,297 - - - 223,297
Health and welfare 29,465 - - - 29,465
Capital outlay N - 63,000 - - 63,000
Debt service T 2832 96111 522,965 — 638.908
Total expenditures 2.102,64) 505357 529965 — 137,963,
EXHIBIT B - CONTINUED
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Fiduciary Fund Tvpes, Total
Special Debt (Memorandum
—General j —Expendable Trust
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 93890  (332.736) 27861 —221 {208.758)
Other financing sources (uses): . -
Transfers in - 58,216 - - 58,216
Transfers out (58.216) - - - (58,216)
Proceeds of debt 15,274 159,748 - - 175,022
Discharge of debts - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) (42.942) 181,649 - - 138,707
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses 52,948 (151,087) 27,861 227 (70,051)
Fund Balance - 10/01/97 636,365 366,002 622,119 14,224 1,638,710
Change in reserves — - —
Fund Balance - 9/30/98 $625540 204005  $640080 ST 1354586
EXHIBIT C-1
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL ALL GOVERNMENTAL
AND PROPRIETY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
GepemnlFynd
—DBudget ~Actual ——Yariance
REVENUES:
tax $ 560,000 $ 557,314 s (2,686)
Penalties and interest 2,400 2,730 330
Licenses and permits 43,200 46,285 3,085
Franchise fees 178,500 184,696 6,196
Homestead exemption - 45,998 45,998
State share revenue
Sales tax 1,075,000 1,080,563 5,563
Alcoholic beverage tax 900 900 .
Intergovernmental
Gas tax 10,000 9,874 (126)
Municipal aid 4,500 4,398 (102)
Other 23,000 24,597 1,597
Cylture and recreation 69,900 66,062 (3,838)
Fines and forfeits 76,500 79,779 3,279
Charges for services 3,500 1,976 (1,524)
Interest eared 24,000 24,120 120
Reimbursements - 2,239 2,239
oG::nts_ 47,700 40,232 (7,468)
er income 10,820 24,567
Total Revenues 2.129,920 2,196,330 66.410

“
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PV W VINTUAAT ) AND ACTUAL ALL GOVERNMEN AL
AND PROPRIETY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

CIWLEM Vatiancs
EXPENDITURES PAGE 80
General government MINUTE BOOK 18
Personnel services 236,841 ’ 234,871 1,970
Supplies 7,450 6,960 490
services 183,193 164,668 18,525
g:gtiwmty EXHIBAT "A"™ 2270 4497
service 35221 15274 £9.949
Totl 545424 450043 541
Public safety
Police
Personnel services 513,018 501,131 11,884
Supplies 25,285 22613 2,672
Other services 41,668 40,368 1,300
Capital outlay 21.887 2151 376
Fire Total 503355 381623 16232
Personnel services 329,724 - 325872 3,852
Supplies 4,900 4394 506
Other services 32,060 25,815 6245
Capital outlays N4 475 449
Total 362608 356536 ~ALos2
Building inspection
Personnel services . 32,649 312384 265
Supplies 4 750 598 152
Other services 2,669 2,033 636
Total 36318 35015 1303
[V
E
EXHIBIT C-1 - CONTINUED
CITY OF rzc"r:L, MISSISSIPPI b
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL ALL GOVERNMENTAL :
AND PROPRIETY FUND TYPES i
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 :
Jt
—General Fund 3
—Budget —Actmal ——Variance
Public works ‘
Personnel services 215,760 208,107 7,653 ;
Supplies 80,350 70,390 9,960 4
Other supplies 101,300 0,193 21,107
Capital outlay 28,930 _22:2“1;- 5,656
Total 426340 82811 38529
Health and welfare
I:viea 19,138 18,705 433
eioped 220 s _dlg
Other services —2.220
Total 29,958 29465 493
Culture and recreation
Personne! services 91464 82,171 9233
Supplies 25,700 21,198 4,502 :
Other services 58,200 41,005 17,195 r
ital outla —4aL563. 15985 - A28 B
N boend 2097 J63ss Tase -,
Civic Center B
Personnel services 38916 38,760 156 {
Supplies . 4,800 3,275 1,525 3
Other services * 23,650 20,099 3,551 !
ital outla; —5.500 —803 —2.695 :
s o a6 299 Jow7 s
EXHIBIT C-1 - CONTINUED
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL ALL GOVERNMENTAL
AND PROPRIETY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
— Gonoral Fund ’
—Budget —Actual — Variance =
Debt service
Total Expendi —=83223 —J2832 —32201
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (241,649) 93,687 335336
Other financing sources (uses)
&n';sfas out . (58,216) (58,216)
Total other financing uses _§- _1_(525.82)%71 ﬁ
Net Excess (deficiency) of revenues over . e
expenditures and other financing uses $.241.649) $ 50,745 3292394 e
Accrued revenues 2,203 -
Fund Balance - October | 636,365
Change in reserves —13.773)
Fund Balance - September 30 $625540

The notes are an integral part of these finencial stasements.



e EXHIBIT C-2
‘ CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI PAGE 81
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES Lo
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL ALL GOVERNMENTAL
AND PROPRIETY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

— . SpecialRevepyeFund

—~Budget ~Actual. . —Yariance
; REVENUES:
State shared revenues $ 140,939 $145,831 $ 4,892
. Intergovernmental 19,980 19,971 [¢))]
Program income 3,252 2,350 (902)
Interest earned 3.800 4469 669
Total Revenue 162971, —172.621 —4.650
EXPENDITURES:
Other services 218,617 159,200 $9,417
Capital outlay 78,147 65,111 13,036
Total Expenditures 296,764 <2421 12453
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (128,799 (51,690) 22103,
Other sources (uses)
Transfers out - (63,000) (63,000)
Debt proceeds —_ 159.748 139.748
Total other sources (uses) — 96,748 26,748,
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other g
financing uses $0128.793) 45,058 $123851 ,{
Adjustments to GAAP basis: Accrued revenues B
Reclassification of capital outlay . (121,935) : ERETH
Discharge of debt per grant agreement (36,315) B
; Reclassification of transfers in 58,216
" Reclassification of debt service {96.111)
o Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) (151,087)
Fund balance - October 1 _366.002 -
Fund balance - September 30 $214915 B
* i
: The notes are an integral part of this statement, : E
- AR,
EXHIBIT C-3
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL ALL GOVERNMENTAL
AND PROPRIETY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

DebtServicePund
' REVENUES:
: Property tax $ 507,000 § 540913 s 33913
Interest eamed —10.400 —2.40s. —A
Total revenues _517,400 360018 —2618
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service
Principal 420,000 420,000 -
Interest 107,598 107,598 :
Agent fees —2850 it 1.482
Total expenditures 331448 322966,
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - M 30,052 $£44,100
Adjustment to GAAP basis: ’
Increase (decrease) in accrued property taxes —2.120
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - GAAP basis 21,861
Fund balance - October 1 L.
Fund balance - September 30 o Se409%0
B )
EXHIBIT C-4
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND
ACTUAL ALL GOVERNMENTAL AND PROPRIETY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
- EnterpriseFund
REVENUES: i
g::nrg’ets ;o; ::mces §$ 1,174,000 $ 1,184,571 $10,57
¥ s 18,842 25,993 7,151
Total revenues 1.220.307 1245776 25,469
EXPENDITURES: - '
Public works
SP::&?::l services 2::,: gg 250,741 18,654
y 71,445
8:!;?; m:il?; and charges 684,300 561,682 ngﬁfx
Depial outa 75,317 131,696 (56,379)
Total expenditures 1272879 L172.108
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
O_;her f;nm;:nlng sources (uses)
ransfers
914,811 914,811
Transfers out (9]4.811) (211,',!]]) .
Total other sources (uses) N = -
Excess (gicgcl:ncyg of revenues and other sources over *
expent and other uses S2351 $.126240
Adjustments to GAAP basis; 72568 -
Debt reduction 121,12
(Ea.e::t:lclzpendhum - 31,250
on
(Increase) decrease in accrued expense ¢ 39'211)
Increase in accounts receivable 12.028
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
R«;::_r :xdpendli:m and m‘h:::j financing uses (GAAP basis) 55,044
ined eamni 2 1]5’335
gs unreserved at October | .
Retained eamings unreserved at September 30 $£2.370.929

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

CITY OF PETAL

MINUTE BOOK 18 Soptamber 30,1598 PAGE 82
Openatin ues:
Chargs o v s
Connect foes 6,470
et e o charges EXHIBIT "A" 101,850
Interest earned 2789
Other income —a0AST
126648
Personnel services 25.;:;8
Conm#m 36,111
Depreciation and amortization 189,091
General and administration 6,794
Sewer treatment _l_.l.&l:l.nﬁi
Operating income 165,705
Other sources (uses) .
Gain on sale of fixed asect 183
Interest expense “9']2',:‘]‘!)
Transfers in
Transfers out 214811
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 55,044 ;
Retained earnings - October | . 2315885
Retainod camings - September 30 i : E
The notes are an integral part of these flaancial statements. Ui
EXHIBIT E g
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI ‘
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ;
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES p
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 . o
Seotumber 30,1998 '
Cash ﬂowfmmopuuﬂn; .
Cash recetved from eumm(excludm; deposit) $ 1,226,431
Cash paid to suppliers (632,851) '
Cash paid to employees —(254237) E
Net cash provided (used) by operating sctivities 339343 !
Cash flow from non-capital financing activities: )
Operating transfers in (net) — 4
Cash flow from capital and related financing activities:
Sale of capital assets 183
Acquisition of capital assets (31,250) ;
Principal paid on bonds (80,000)
Principal paid on notes (50,228)
Principal paid on capital Jease (5,616)
Interest paid —(111.296) {
Net cash flows provided (used) by capital and related financing activities —(278207) §
]
Cash flow from investing activities: ¥
Interest received 21899 P
Net increase (docrease) in cash for the year 89,035 3
Cash and restricted cash - October | — lan i
Cash and restricted cash - September 30 270468 }‘
!
§
e i
{
EXHIBIT E (continued) !
CITY OF mu(..mssmsm S
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
:d;mmwm&mmwmudmbymm $ 165,105 | ' <
Depreciation and amortization 189,091 :
(Increase) decrease in accounts recsivable (17,028)
lnaeue (deaeoe) in accounts payable 26,996
(lm)deuuse in customer deposits (2; :gg)
. Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 410
Net cash provided by operating activities §.339343
Othene?uired disclosures:
nterest expense $ 110,844
Interest paid 111,296

e
pos?

*

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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EXHIBIT "A" a ” g
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The City of Petal was incorporated in 1974 and operates under a Mayor-Alderman form of government and provides the following
services:
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
General Administration
A. Reporting Entity
In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the f:ntena.set_forth
in GAAP. The basic - but not the only - criteria for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the
governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not hmxtgd to, the
selection of the governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations and
accountability for fiscal matters. Based upon the application of these criteria, the following is a brief review of each
potential component unit addressed in defining the City's reporting entity.
Excluded from the reporting entity: ’ '
-Petal Police Auxiliary
-Petal Volunteer Fire Department
-Pine Belt Regional Waste Authority
-Area Development Partnership
-Petal Municipal Separate School District
A\

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

A.

Reporting Entity (continued)

The City of Petal donates to or has a financial commitment to these entities but does not appoint management or exert
significant control over these organizations.

Blended with the reporting entity:
-Petal Public Improvement Corporation

The Petal Public Improvement Corporation is a not-for-profit entity formed to finance the construction of a multi-purpose
center to be leased to the City. The Board of Directors of the Petal Public Improvement Corporation is composed of the
Mayor and Aldermen of the City of Petal.

The financial statements of the Petal Public Improvement Corporation are reported as a Special Revenue Fund, using the
blended method of reporting, in the general purpose financial statements of the City of Petal.

Account Classifications

The account classifications used in the financial statements are in accordance with the classifications required by the
Mississippi State Department of Audit.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All govemmental fund
types are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current
assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases and decreases in net current assets,

-
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CITY OF PETAL
S IEMEATS PAGE 84
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting mm&“wA "

C.

Basis of Accounting (continued)

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus,
all assets and all liabilities associsted with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheets. Fund equity
is segregated into contributed capital and retained eamings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present
increases and decreases in net total assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they
become both measurable and available). "Measurable” means the amount can be determined and "available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recorded as fund liabilities when due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, interest revenue and charges
for services. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method,
revenues are recorded when carmed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City of Petal are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses. City of Petal resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped into generic fund types and broad categories as follows:

.
’

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)

D.

Fund Accounting (continued)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the municipality. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. .

Special Revenye Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted for specific expenditure purposes.

Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Funds are-used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The primary revenue source is local property taxes levied
specifically for debt service.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations which are intended to be self-supporting through
user charges or where the board has determined that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for management
control and accountability.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Trust and Agency Funds - Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individual, private organizations and/or other funds. Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially
the same manner as governmental funds. Nonexpendable Trust Funds are used to account for the principal portion of trust
funds, the part which cannot be expended. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of results of Operations.

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

E.

Fixed Assets and Long-term Liabilities

Theoonsincmredfonhepmchueoreonmucﬁonofgenenlﬁxedmeummo:deduapi&louﬂaycxpmdimmin

the governmental funds. The fixed assets are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets

governmental funds. Account Group, rather than in the

The long-term liabilities incurred by the City whi
the General Long: Term Debt Account Grow, mﬁu&mm‘% govemmental finds are acoousted for in

The two account groups are not funds. They are concerned i .
involved with measurement of results of opcratione. oaly with the measurement of financial position. They are not

Deposits and Investments.

The City deposits funds in the financial institutions selected by the Board erm:
. . i i
Furthermore, the City invests excess funds in various invnu:ycnt insu'umez{s‘:lhit arv:n alllr:wavce‘:io 'I;‘:'a:tiemvtt;h siate stawtes.

I
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CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(1)  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

F.  Deposits and Investments (continued) !

Deposits
All deposits with financial institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) must be
collateralized in an amount equal to 105% of the uninsured deposit. All deposits with financial institutions insured
by the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC) cannot exceed the amount insured by that agency
(FSLIC).

Investments
The City is allowed, by statute, to invest excess funds in any bond or other direct obligations of the United States
of America or the State of Mississippi, or in any financial institution approved for the deposit of state funds.

G. Fund Reserves

Fund reserves are portions of fund equity that are legally segregated for a specific future use or are not available for current
operations. Following is a description of all reserves approved by City policy:

Reserved for unemployment compensation - An account that represents the unemployment revolving fund balance
which is legally restricted for the payment of unemploymgnt benefits.

Reserved for debt service - An account used to segregate a portion of fund balance for debt service resources legally
restricted to the payment of long-term debt principal and interest amount maturing in future years.

Reserved for inventory - An account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate that inventory does not
represent available, spendable resources even though it is a component of assets,

Reserved for facili?y' replacement - An account used to separate a portion of the fund balance that is restricted by
bond agreement to facility repair and replacement.

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
(1)  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

H. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximate market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of
govemmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

L Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified
as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use if limited by bond covenants.

J. Compensated Absences

Employees accumulate sick leave at an amount provided by the City policy. Accumulated sick leave or vacation is not paid
upon termination of employment,

K. Cash

The City considers any investment with a maturity of less than 90 days to be cash.

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(2)  Interfund Receivables and Payables

The following is a summary of Due To and Due From other funds:

—DueTg —DucFrom
General Fund s 9,297 S 4,677
Proprietary Fund:
Water and Sewer 102,243 92,321
Solid Waste 14,547
Trust and Agency Fund:

Tax Collector's Fund S
Total 3 111,545 3 111545



@

®
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Accounts Receivable - Customers

WA
Customer accounts receivable in the Enterprise Fund are mggqu‘npn at year-end for charges for services. The
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts balance at September 30, 1998, is $2,400, which is computed at 5% of gross receivables at year-
end. The 5% approximation is based on the City’s history of collections.

Notes Receivable

. . . . A . Asaresult,
TheCntyofPeuImmmwmmmmmof&mofmwmw
the City has $67,667 in notes receivable from grant contracts. Rq.nymemont.h_uemmmhbleformemthepmmm.
However, $56,121 of the notes are being forgiven at 10% per year if grant conditions are met.
Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of the changes in general fixed assets:

Balance Balance
Land and easements $ 311,287 $ - s - $311,287
Buildings 1,058,028 - - 1,058,028
Improvements 266,532 - - 266,532
Bq:lm 78,056 3,250 40 81,266
Motor vehicles 501,064 39,641 10,546 530,159
Other > 429,455 15,054 4,883 439,626
Sewer system 5,562,775 - - 5,562,775
Assets under lease — - 195022 —_— 195022
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP]
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Fixed Assets (continued)

Proprietary Fund Type fixed assets are recorded in the Enterprise Funds and are summarized as follows:

Balance Balance

Water and Sewer Fund
Land and casements : $21,994 S - S - $21,994
Buildings 79,939 - - 79,939
Water/Sewer systems 5,357,922 - - 5,357,922
Operating equipment 299,437 31,250 9,345 321,342
Assets under capital lease 40,392 - - 40,392
Less: Accumulated depreciation —{2.061.804) 189.091) 3303) (24759
~3237.880 {157,841) 6042 3573997

Solid Waste Fund

Operating equipment 6,682 . - 6,682
Less: Accumulated depreciation —{6.682) — - —_— 16.682)
Total 1737880  HI57.84D) 36042 §$3.573.997

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Addiﬁommapinliudwhileexpendinmformﬁnmmdmpdmmchugedagainn
revenues. Depreciation is not provided for in the General Fixed Asset Group. Depreciation is based upon the estimated useful life
ofd:epmpertymdeﬂhesuaight-linemetbodin?mpimyFdeypes.

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Bonds Payable

Presented below is Section 21-33-303 Mississippi Code: No municipality shall hereafier issue bonds secured by a pledge of its
full faith and credit for the purposes authorized by law in an amount which, when added to the then outstanding bonded
indebtedness of such municipality, shall exceed ecither (a) fifteen percent (15%) until September 30, 1999, and ten percent (10%)
thereafter of the assessed value of the taxable property within such municipality, according to the last completed assessmeni for
taxation, or (b) ten percent (10%) of the assessment upon which taxes were levied for its fiscal year ending September 30, 1984,
whichever is greater. In computing such indebtedness, hereafter issued, for school, water, sewerage systems, gas, and light and
power purposes and for the construction of special improvements primarily chargeable to the property benefited, or for the purpose
of paying the municipality’s proportion of any better program, a portion of which is primarily chargeable to the property benefited.
However, in no case shall any municipality contract any indebtedness which, when added to all of the outstanding general
obligation indebtedness, both bonded and floating, shall exceed either (a) twenty percent (20%) until September 30, 1999, and
fifteen percent (15%) thereafier of the assessed value of all taxable property within such municipality according to the last
completed assessment for taxation or (b) fifteen percent (15%) of the assessment upon which taxes were levied for its fiscal year
ending September 30, 1984, whichever is greater. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to apply to contract obligations in
which are subject to annual appropriations therefore, or to bonds heretofore issued by any municipality for school purposes, or to
contract obligations in any form heretofore or hereafter incurred by any municipality which are payable exclusively from the
revenues of any municipality-owned utility, or to bonds issued by any municipality under the provisions of Sections 57-1-1 through
57-1-51, ot to any special assessment improvement bonds issued by any municipality under the provisions of Sections 21-41-1
through 21-41-53.

All bonds issued prior to July 1, 1990, pursuant to this chapter by any municipality for the purpose of the constructing, replacing,
renovating or improving waste water collection and treatment facilities in order to comply with an administrative order of the
Mississippi Department.of NaturahResources issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act and amendments thereto,
are hereby exempt for the limitation imposed by this section, if the governing body of the municipality adopts an order, resolution

ar nrdinance to the affart that the ratac aaid ke the ceare A cnh Facitioine abhatl ha fnceancnd o ok
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ble (continued)
(6)  Bonds Payable ( EXHIBIT "A" e 30, 1958:
The following is a schedule of limitations on the indebtedness of the City at eptem! A :
20 Percent
Authorized Debt Limit: 15 Percent.
Assessed valuation for fiscal year ended 6 4292204 ¢ 5,722,858
September 30, 1998 - 528,614,6?1 (‘.125 E)OO)
Present debt subject to 15% limitation i g
Present debt subject to 20% limitation including
debt subject only 15% limitation PR (835000

Margin for further debt under respective debt limits

()  Changes in Long-Term Debt
ntal Information section of this report.

A schedule of changes in long-term debt is presented in the Other Suppleme:

Bonds and installment notes payable are comprised of the following:

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:

$3,750,000 Separate School District Bonds due in a:!nunl inxullmen;s
of $80,000 in 1978 and 1979 increasing to $85,000 in 1981, 39:,::0
in 1982, $95,000 in 1983, $150,000 in 1984 through 1989, $160,

i 80,000
i through 1993, $170,000 in 1994 through 1998, $180,
El: 1133?) thro‘\ll:: 2002, and $200,000 in 2003, interest at 5.50%to 6.75%. $ 920,000

TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(7 Changes in Long-Term Debt (continued)
SEWER ABATEMENT NOTE PAYABLE:

$417,827 Sewer Abatement Loan due in monthly installments of $1,667 for
240 months at 0%. . $_ 150297

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION:

$550,000 in Certificates of Participation due in annual installments of $20,000

in 1994; $25,000 in 1995 through 1997; $30,000 in 1998 and 1999; $35,000

in 2000 and 2001; $40,000 in 2002 and 2004; $45,000 in 2004 and 2005; $50,000

in 2008, interest at 5.60% to 8.00%. $§ 425,000

REVENUE BONDS:

$825,000 Water and Sewer Series 1990 due in annual instaliments of $20,000 from

1991 to 1993, $25,000 in 1994 to 1996, $30,000 in 1997 and 1998, $35,000 in 1999

and 2000, and $40,000 in 2001, $45,000 in 2002 and 2003, $50,000 in 2004,

$55,000 in 2005 and 2006, $60,000 in 2007, $65,000 in 2008, $70,000 in

2009 and $75,000 in 2010, interest at 6.6% to 9.4% $__630,000

A
’

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED September 30, 1998

(7)  Changes in Long-Term Debt
GENERAL OBLIGATION ENTERPRISE BONDS:
31.370,900 Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of
$5,000 in ‘l 992, $25,000 in 1993 to 1995, $230,000 in 1996, $250,000 in 1997, :
$225,000 in 1998, $270,000 in 1999 and $285,000 in 2000, interest at 3.0% to 5.3%. $ 810,000
$700,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds due in annua! installments of $25,000 in

1990, $30,000 in 1991 and 1992, $35,000 in 1993 and 1994, $40,000 in 1995 and 1996,
$45,000 in 1997, $50,000 in 1998 and 1999, $55,000 in 2000, $60,000 in 2001, 365,006

in 2002, $70,000 in 2003 and 2004, interest at 7.1% to 10.0%. 370,000
' TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION ENTERPRISE BONDS S$L180,000
OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT:

:80;757757 s‘:}t; Revolving Loan Fund loan due in monthly install;nents of $5,532
or 237 months at 4.5% per annum. ’ $ 712733

$125,000 five year note due in five installments of $25,000 plus interest
accrued at 3.99% annually. 25.000

Y
¥
Tatal Othear T ano-Term Naht ¢ Anm man
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CITY OF PETAL {

(M  Changes in Long-Term Debt (con .
. - BOOK 18 PAGE 88
Tbemnualxeqmmenutomuaallbondeddebtuof&pwnbedo, l99§follom:
Year Ending 9/30 E —Interest
1999 $180,000 $ 51,200
2000 180,000 40,400
2001 180,000 29,375
2002 180,000 18,125
2003 —200.000 — 6230
3.220.000 3145350
$700.000 Water snd Scwer Refunding Bond
1999 50,000 25,315
2000 55,000 21,535
2001 60,000 17,365
2002 65,000 12,803 |
2003 70,000 7,840 |
Thereafter 10000 —025 |
320000 52843 ;
$825.000 Scries 1990 Revenne Bond i
Principal
1999 $ 35,000 $42,825
2000 35,000 40,515
2001 40,000 38,020
2002 . 45,000 35,150
2003 ’ 45,000 32,068
Thereafter $£430000 $115.648 !
$630,000 $304.226, l 1
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(7  Changes in Long-Term Debt

$1,370,000 Refunding Series
. Diing o !
1999 $ 255,000 $34,091
2000 270,000 21,285
2001 _285.000 1268
3810000 $62.644
Yoax Eading 030 3550.000 Certificates of Participation
1999 $ 30,000 $25,198
2000 ' 35,000 23212
2001 ’ 35,000 21,226
2002 40,000 19,040 ’
2003 40,000 16,660
Thereafter _245.000 40120 \
$425.000 $146.056, ‘
$125,000 Five Year Notés "
. Principal 1
1999 $ 25000 s 008
$.25.000 3998
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(0  Changes in Long-Term Debt

—$807.757 SRE Loan_
Year Ending 9/30 —Principsl —Interest
1999 $30,684 $31,445
2000 32,094 30,036
2001 35,568 28,561
2002 35,111 27,019
2003 36,724 25,406
Thereafter 344552 149229
i212.733 1221626

(8)  Defined Benefit Peasion Plan

wmmamwmmwmmwwsmofmmems),
acod-dmingm:lﬁpb-employudeﬁmdhaeﬁtpuﬁmplm. mmmmmmmm«-
ﬁmujmmuumm»mmmum Benefit provisions are established by State law and may
be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. msm.mwmmmmmmmmm
statements and required supplementary information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement
System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800 444 PERS.

Funding Policy: PERS members are required to contribute 7.25% of their annual covered salary and the City of Petal is required
1o contribute at an actuarial determined rate. The current rate is 9.75% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements
of PERS members are established and msy by amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The City's contributions to
PERS for the years ending September 30, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $115,737, $107,207, and $98,656, respectively, equal to the



9 Ad Valorem Taxes Levied for Other Governmentsl Entities

As stated in Note 1, Summary of Significant ARTIRNG PORes j has been prepared t© include the funds and account
groups of the City. Section 35-57-1 et seq., Mimm lw the City levy and collect all taxes for and on behalf
881 e

of the municipal separate school district. Section 39-3-7, Miss , authorizes the City to levy and collect a jax not 1
in excess of three milts for the support of any public library system located within the municipality. AGE 89 !
gnized as revenues and

Ad valorem taxes collected and settled in WMXHW'M gatutory authorities are not reco

expenditures of the City with the exception of school bonde indebtedness issued prior t0 March 3, 1987. The accompanying
supplemental information schedule »Reconciliation of Tax Assessments to Fund Collections” provides specific assessment and
settiement information. For the reported fiscal year the following ad valorem tax levies were made in accordance with the
applicable statutory requirements and authorizations:

School District: ‘

Minimum Education Program 37-57-1 2.65 mills i

Operational Support 37-57-105 54,01 mills '

]

School Bonded Indebtedness '

(for bonds issued subsequent i
to March 3, 1987) 37-59-23 5.0 mills

Taxes collected for school bonded indebtedness jssued prior to March 3, 1987 and debt service expenditures attributable to such
debt is reported in the City's School Bond and Interest Fund (accounted forasa debt service fund). In addition to recording these
transactions in a separat debt service fund, the debt attributable to these jssues is recorded in the City's General Long-term Debt
Group of Accounts.

Due to certain statutory changes and interpretations issued by the State Attorney General's office, the City does not record debt
service transactions attributable to school bonds issued subsequent to March 3, 1987. These bond issues are not reported in the ‘ '
City's Long-term Debt Group of Accounts. i

cITy OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 k

(10) Legal Compliance

A. Budget

The City of Petal has metall requirements set forth by law and prescribed by the State Department of Auditin preparation

and monitoring of the budget for the govemmemal funds of the City of Petal.

oY

B. Purchasing

The City of Petal has in place the procedures required by the State of Mississippi as set forth in Part 111 of the Municipal

Compliance Questionnaire.

c. Property Tax )

Pro; es are assessed b the City ona calendar year basis and are considered delinquent as of February 1. Tax sales

perty tax ?
are held in April and August to recovet unpaid property texes at that date.
perty tax revenue Over the previous year and requires that

State law provides for a 10 percent limitation on increased pro A quires
any excesf tax collections are to be placed in escrow and applied against the following years taX revenue. The City did not

exceed the 10 percent limitation for the year ended September 30, 1998.
15. Deposits

The City's bank balance at September 30, 1998, was. $2,471,412. This balance was undercol\awralized by $286,528 in |
violation of state statutes. s i B

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(11) Receivables

Receivables at September 30, 1998 consist of the following:

Accounts - $ - s - s - $ 123,469 $ 123,469
Franchise fees 45,127 - - - 45,127
Sales tax 82,342 ; i 3 82342
Auto ad valorem 16,349 6486 4,158 ; 26993

Totals $£143818 £.6.486, $4138 $123.460, $227.93L

Customer accounts receivable in the Enterprise Fund are attributable to unpaid balances for charges through September 30, 1998.

(12) Payables from Restricted Assets

Centain assets of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund have been restricted for debt servi i i
h service, customer deposits and construction.
These assets consist of cash and certificates of deposit restricted as follows: Pt onstmetor

Customer deposits . $106,855
Accrued interest 8,615
Bonds and notes payable (current) _115.684
.
(13) Deferred Charges

~ B :
o vman 100 the City issued $825,000 of Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds to finance the extension
a1 €& 771 in legal and other issuance



NULED LU PN v oo
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(14) Contributed Capital CITY OF PETAL
Contributed capital as of September 30, 1998 consiﬂla';nl UTE BOOK 18 - PAGE 90
Contributions from Customers $ 50,068
Coutributions from Federsl Goveeypt BTT " BA%2
Contributions from City of Petal
Total 1 176,886

(15) Inventory
menmpﬁsemdguenlﬁmdinvemoﬁammdnm Couisdeeaminedpimnilym:heﬁm-in.ﬁm-mnmahod.

(16)  Solid Waste Disposal

Pus\nnttoSeaionl7-17-347oftthisisippiMW(IM}MWMMWWWM{«W
dispos-landcolbcﬁoninumiﬂryﬁmd. The City WMMWmmummWMwum
services for the City. WWMIM.W&”I?.MW&G&MWN. 1998.

(17) Risk Management
TheCityofPeulismpoaedtovnimﬁsbofhunlnedwm;theﬁoﬁdmpm.mddgmnﬁonofm;mnnd .
omiuiom;ini\niumunployees;mdmnl disasters. MCitypuﬁcipminmmﬁskpoolswpmvideeomgefor 3
possible losses due to these risks. yThese pools are described below: : -

mwlmmmmmwmwiw«mmmmwmwmmammmmjmm
to employees. The City is jointly and severally liable for obligations of the group.

44

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI i
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(17 Risk Management (continued)
B. Mississippi Munict L Liability P!

Thilpwlwfamdmdam-lodwufutbmofmmwnymemﬁbdbyme
Plan for the member municipalities. Thepoolmun'servieeeompny'bwdnplm'sdaytodayacﬁviﬁu.

mCityofPenlpuysp:unimbaedmmmnﬁalmofdudtfsmw:m:nddwphmovmﬂ
financial condition. The City may be assessed if.nmyﬁme.themofdnpln.intheopinionomandomesm.
are insufficient 1o discharge its obligations.
(18) Capital Leases
TbeCityistheleueeofModdSSOSqerLu.duundaldipinlleueexpirinconMnchlo.Zooz. The assets and liabilities

und«upiulleuesmmdeduthclowaofmpmanvuluofminimmhmp-ymenuorﬂwﬁirvdueofdnm The
mmwmum«uwmmummwm Deptedlﬁoqofusetsunduapinl

lmhimlwedhhmdlﬁmwfotsmanbeﬂo. 1998.

Followingiumnmryofpmpaty\nderapiulleua:

Model 580 Super L Loader $40,392
Less: accumulated deprecistion (4039
536333
3
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(18)  Capital Leases (continued)

Minimum future lease i ‘
payments under capital leases as of September 30, 1998 for the next five years are as follows:

—Amount
:g $ 7311
2000 : 7311
2001 7311
7,311
2002 13.144
Total minimum lease payments 42388
Less: interest amount
Ptelemvnlueofnetminimnmlenem Lm

Interest rate of capital lease is 4.91%.

The City of Petal is the lessee of a New )
and lisbilities under capital leases are 0 Tractor under a capital lease expiring Decemt
value of the asset. ! 'mw&thclmofthemvduofmhimmmm’mmlo'llg”l‘J’”m

Following is a summary of property under capital leases:

>
Model 4630 Tractor £15274
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(18)  Capital Leases (continued) EXHIBIT ",A "

Minimum future lease payments under capital leases of September 30, 1998 are as follows:

Amount.

1999 $8,544
2000 1424

Total minimum lease payments 9,968
Less: Interest amount 335

Present value of net minimum
lease payments $9.633
Interest rate is 5.5%.

The City of Petal is the lessee of 2 1998 Model Cyclone II fire truck under a capital lease expiring February 11, 2005. The assets
and liabilities under capital leasé are recorded at the lower of the present value of minimum lease payments or the fair value of the
asset.

Following is a summary of property under capital leases:

Model Cyclone II Fire Truck $179.748

-

-3

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
i NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(18)  Capital Leases (continued)

Minimum future lease payments under capital leases of September 30, 1998 are as follows:

5399 $26,843

zogo 26,843

2 1 26,843

2:))02 26,843

03 26,843

Thereafter _38.027

Total minimum lease payments K 172,242
Less: interest amount - 25.54]
Present value of net minimum lease payments £146.701

(19)  Contingencies

verted timely and would not have an adverse effect on

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(19)  Contingencies (continued)

B.B.L, Incorporated is coordinating and monitoring the Year 2000 process for the City. The assessment stage is in process and
the conversion process will begin in early 1999. Cost estimates for Year 2000 compliance measures indicate that the cost will not
be material and no material amount was committed at September 30, 1998.
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EXHIBIT "A"
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1
SCHEDULE 1
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1
—GENERAL FUND - BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 1997)

ASSETS 28 1991
Cash $ 707,123 $ 615,002
Receivables

Franchise foes 45,127 40,929
Due from:

Ot ents 98,691 108,400

ot ”ﬁ ""l nm 4,677 4,677
Inventory st cost Ll T

Total assets 3357134 120745

LIABILITIES
Bills docketed $ 74479 $ 52,904
Cash 79,598 68,649
Tax "°°"’| " 1,453 1,453
Security deposits 27 340
Due o other funds —2291 2291

Total liabilities 165102 132643

FUND BALANCE
Rosarved fos fnventon 1,536 2718
Reserved for over collection 14976 <
Unreserved 515540 636365

Total fund balance 692052 639103
Total lisbilities and fund balance 3852154 3711246,
-
The notes are an integral part of the financial statoments.
. e ]
SCHEDULE 2
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
(With Comperative Totals for the Year Endod September 30, 1997)
REVENUES
—l7

Pmpeﬂy ax 492,859
Penalties and interest on delinquent taxes * ”:..;13: 9,403
Licenses and permits 46,285 36,019
Fmehhenwfou 188,894 181,623
Homese :v:::on 45,998 443818

Sales tax

Alcoholic beverage levy e 992.:05;
Intergovernmental;

Gasoline tax

Mumicipa id pri we -
Cultural snd recrestional fees 6,062 75,132
Fines and forfeits n 69,338
Charges for services 1,976 3,604
Podars groct = st

0Urces

State grants ;::;:‘21 A
Sale of equipment 4,628 2,69
Interest 24,120 13432
Miscellaneous m' 212

Total revenues 21983531 2013239

EXPENDITURES

General government 450,04 368,597
Public safety ; ¥ mho; 122
Public works 38781 341,109
Cultural and recreational w2 l":lOl
Health and welfare 29,465 29,033
Debt service g2 T

Total expenditures 2102641 ' 1902050

i e

v
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sCRSHLE BRddBT)" A"
i CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
B GENERAL FUND
. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 1997)
4
1998 1997
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 95890 111209
Other financing sources (uses) ’
Donations C . 4,004
: Expense reimbursements - 3,864
: Transfers out (58,216) (90,141)
Debt proceeds 15274 —
Total other financing uses {42.942) —(82273)
Excess of revenue and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses 52,948 28,936
Fund balance - October 1 636,365 606,360
Change in reserve {13710 — 369
Fund balance - September 30 £675540 £.66365
S
SCHEDULE 3-A
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP!
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Fire Law Rosd Multi Rental  MCPP Law " Loan  RentalRehab 1994
Protection * Enforcement Maintenance Building Rehab Enforcement  SEECB  Repayment Loan Home
fund _  __Fund = _Fund _Fupd.  _Fund. Program  _TJoul
Cash $74,454 $13,262 $105,933 $ 588 s - $ 4,133 s - $3,650 $ 100 $1 $202,121
Receivables - . . . . - . . . . .
Other . . - - 82 . - . 28,758 . 67,667
Due from other
govemnments . . 1,734 - . 4732 B - . - 6,486
Total assets 2484 313262 £107687  SSE  SI8912 $88635, 0 13630 52888 . 3226214
LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable £.2231 $.260 $S8779 9§ - @ S £ 8 s - - f S— I $61.359
Total lisbilities —2231 —~260 8379 .- s —_— — —_ Y - S1359.
EQUITY .
Unreserved 212 ~13.002  _48008  _388 38912 L8 — 2650 28855 -4 214215
Total equity a1 13002 _4890%8  _s88 38912 8782 —_ 3650 28855 L 214915
Total Lisbitities
and Equity 124458 113262 LI07687 5388 §a8912 18863 d. 33630 228535 Sl 826214
SCHEDULE 3-B
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
S T OF REVENUES, XPENDITURES,
G STA A
COMBININ AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE?;
FOR YEAR ENDED September 30, 192
MCPP La Lom  Reid ili”n:e
tal w Loan of
Fire Law Rosd Mu .l-ﬁ ‘l::nm Enforcement  SEECB Repay Fund Program. Joul
P Fand . _Pund  uwd  Bwd —Bwd— ¢ . s - 104376
Sund s s - 8 - s - . 35,342
REVENUifS ands § - § - 5104376 5 - ) . - - i . 6,113
Road maintenance . - - } - - ; . 4,469
Municipal fire funds 38,342 L8 . . e ) m 103 . 19971
Law enforcement funds 98(; v 14 1,944 18 - A . . - N 2350
Interest R 199M - '_ . . —— 2350 - 172,621
Grants i e n et = Yo . 211 AL —+
Other income — 31466 106320 if —
Total revenues s 21465, . 203,287
- . i . 142,959
EXPENDITURES 87791 12,650 . . - 2,846 i . . . .
Public uf:yu i - 142959 - . . - - i N 96,111
Public wol . . - b . N - ° ) 63,000
Recreation ; . . 58216 - Y YA 8938 08 —_— 305357
Debt service 37,898 ) 2 = —> 7me 7 AN 208
Capital outlay Py Y 142,959 53216, —
Total expenditures 225,386, 12650
Excess (deﬂcienc)'):f) 1985 Q20D (8661 (48640  —= L3560
revenues over (under §816 (36639 £58198)
expenditures: 189369
. - 58,216
Other financing sources g ) ] ) . . | 5;9 :?/43
(uses): . - 582 - - - - " 5 (36315)
Transfers in (out) : . . - - - _ . _ - 41D —
Debt proceeds 159,748 N S - 2 — — 181649
Debt discharge e - A . s 4D
Total other financing . - ss216 (LB —_— -

sources (uses) 59748
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EXHIBIT "A"®
SCHEDULE 3-B
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Fire Law Rosd Multi Rental MCPP Law Loan Rental Rohab 1994

__Faod _Pwod  _Ped _Peod _Ped  _Ped _Pad _Bed  Posom _Toul
Excess (deficieacy) of
revenues and other
and fim:cvgg uses (29,616) 8816 (36,639) 13 (32,138) 1,988  (027) (8.661)  (52,829) - (151,080
Fund balance 1001797 100833 4136 85347 310 JLOXO £797 2022 J2311  _BL6RO L 366002
Fundbalance 093098 §72217  £13.002 $4508 S350 £30012 SRIB. i 52630 A2AM3D il 324205
otk
SCHEDULE 4-A
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS i
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET !
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 ;
i
2.5 Million Sewer SSD Bond Total
Bond & Interest and Interest (Memorandum
— Fund —Fud —COot)
ASSETS 7
s 407,136 $ 238811 $ 64594
Cash ’
4158 — 4158
Due from other governments
Total Assets 407136 1242969 650103
LIABILITIES  F— 15 i1 |
Total Liabilities 125 125 ’
EQUITY : )
Reserved for debt service — 40136 242,544 — 649980
Total Equity — 407136 — 242,344 _—
Total Liability and Fund Equity SR $.242.969 6301050
1o
SCHEDULE 4-B
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
2.5 Million Sewer SSD Bond Total
Bond & Interest and Interest (Memorandum
—_rund —Fund —0Only)
REVENUES
Property tax $ 306,891 $ 231,830 s 538721
Interest earned — 12316 —_6.789 —19105
Total Revenues —319.207 —238619 —a51.826
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal 250,000 170,000 420,000
Interest 45,898 61,700 107,598
Agent fees —32 - 333 —_—2167
Total Expenditures ——291.930 —232.035 529965
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 2127 6,584 27,861
Fund balance, October 1, 1997 385859 — 236260 —$22,119
Fund balance, September 30, 1998 s 407136 $.242.844 3649980

w

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

58



CITY OF PETAL o
MINUTE BOOK 18 PAGE 95

¢
¥
.
v
b

SCHEEM:E-RI T " A"

i CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
% TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
X COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
i ' SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
£
Totals
. Insurance Tax .
. Benefit Revolving  Collector's _ (Memorandum
_Fund ~ _Fund _Fund
1 ASSETS § 60525
. Cash in bank ‘ $45476 s 14451 § 398
: Total Assets §43426  §-1443 I  ——
LIABILITIES 593
Due to other governments s - $ § 592 5
Due to other funds y 45,476
Deferred benefits payable 45476 —— e
Total Liabilities _45.476 —_— —398 — 46074
- 1445l
FUND BALANCE —_— 14451 ———
Total liabilities and fund balance 45476  Sl4dsl - E228 £6022 B
- 5
e .
SCHEDULE 5-B ','al
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI B
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS !
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES - !
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Insurance Totals :
Revolving ) (Memorandum g
Fund —Onlv) {
REVENUES ;
Interest earned - 8227 . s 227
EXPENDITURES
Excess of revenue over expenditures 227 ' 227 p
o /n"' ,’
Fund balance - October 1, 1997 —14.224 _ 14224 !
Fund balance - September 30, 1998 $ 14,4351 3 _14451 ’
o
SCHEDULE 6-A
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Water and :
ASSETS SE:wm;r vslo"l;; M b d
: emorandum
Cash : —Fund
Receivables $477,853
Accounts i $43,738 $ 521,591
Other 64,422 b - -
Inventory . 18,106 :l‘g'l 14 94,536
Prepaid expense . 35,512 827 28,933
ll:ue: from other funds 1,055 . 3?.312
estricted assets 92,321 , 055
Debt service 5 14,547 106,868
Bond contingency 62,975 . : -
Bond depreciation 5,046 62,975
Bond cushion 5,045 . 5,046
P:)““ity repair 81,830 - 8?.2;5
perty, plant and equi 197,581 X 830
Land and me::lllpment - b 197,581
Improvements 21,994 . : -
Water and sewer systems 241,961 i 21,994
Machinery and equipment 5,195,901 : 241,961
Accumulated depreciation 321,341 6,684 5195901
Bond issuance cost : (2,247,592) @ ,684 328,025
Accumulated amortization 26,771 »684) (2,254,276)
Capitalized interest . (11,489) : 26,771
Assets held under capital lease . 26,721 X ( 12 ; .;gs;)

Total assets —40392
£4637746 £22226
314256972

(3]
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SCHEDULE 6-A (Continued)
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP]
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
EXHEBET A ANEE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 .

Water and Solid Total .
Sewer Waste Memorandum
LIABILITIES —Fond_ —fund —al
Accounts payable
Due 1 ot s ‘0226 sane 020
Customer deposits 106,855 - 106,855
Accrued interest . 8,615 - 8,615
Revenue bonds payable 1,000,000
1) () - l.000.000
Abatement note paysble 863,031 . 863,031
Accrued expenses 4474 351 4'825
Lease payable 31,460 R 3 I' 0
Total Liabilities . 2181159 27998 2200057
FUND EQUITY
Contributed capital 1
Reserved for debt service , 4?:3:: ’ ‘7.9”2 Hg"::
‘I}wved for repair and replacement 58,543 - 58:?43
nreserved
Tota! Equity ﬁ ﬁﬁ L2018 . Ny
Tota! Lisbilities and Equity §4657246 LIS , : i
i%2s S415692. 1
Tumnnhuuupmordnﬁunmmu:
o
SCHEDULE 6-B ' 'ri!
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1 SN
ENTERPRISE FUNDS R
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Water and Solid Total
Sewer Waste (Memorandum
—Fund —Lund —Only) __
Charges for services $ 122,921 $369,386 $ 1,092,307
Tap foes 17470 - 17,470
Connect fees 6,470 - 6,470
Sewer treatment charges 101,850 - 101,850
Interest earned 27,356 543 27,899
Other income ~12.991 —249% 20487
Total revenue 294058 ines 266483 P
Openating Expenses: e
Personnel costs 238,340 13,500 251,840 e
Supplies and materials 88,110 1,310 89,420
Contractual services 45,642 317,469 363,111
Repairs and maintenance 27,810 - 27,810
Utilities 71,548 . 71,548
Depreciation and amortization 189,091 . 189,091
General and sdministrative 6,794 - 6,794
Sower treatment 10L164 N ~10L164
Total operating expense 165499 - 32208 L100.778
Openating income (Joss) 123359 40146 165705 :
Other sources (uses) H
Sale of fixed assets 183 . 13 !
Transfers in 914,811 - 914,811 :
Transfers out 914,81)) - (914,811) !
Interest expense (110.344) D —_— (110,244} ;
Total other sources (uses) L0661 —_ (10660 :
Opersting income and other sources (nsa) 14,898 40,146 55,044 i
Retained earnings October 1, 1997 232738 16253) 2115885 :
Retained carings September 30, 1998 L24166 29 42320920
The notes are an integral part of these statements.
.
SCHEDULE 6-C
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPP1
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Water and Solid Total
Sewer Waste (Memerandum
~bBnd__ ~bPnd —Oniy)

c(.:‘:h ned::n from customers $ 869,246 $357,185 $1,226,431

Cash paid to suppliers (316,307) (316,344) (632,851)
Cash paid to employees Q41080 (12140 234230
Net cash provided (used) by m activities 11681 22692 439343

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities: .

Operating transfers in (net) - ——

Cash flows from capital and reisted financing activities: -
Sale of capital assets 183 - .
Acquisition of capital assets (31,250) - (31,250)
Principal paid on bonds (80,000) . (80,000)
Principal paid on notes (50,228) - (50.22:)
Principal paid on capital lease (5.616) . (5.616)
t e::’ provided (used) by capital and *

Net capl
related ﬁnmmcﬁmviﬂa 278207) —_ 208.207)

Cash flows from in g activities

Interest received 21356 343 _ 27899
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s
'EXHIBIT "A"
SCHEDULE 6-C (continued)
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
PROPRIETARY FUNDS i
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Water and Solid Total
Sewer Waste (Memorandum
—Fund___ —Fund__
Operating income (loss) $ 125,559 $ 40,146 $ 165,705
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
16 net cash provided by operating activities: ,
Deprecintionpmd amortization 189,091 - 189,091 o
Interest eamned (21,356) (543) (27,899) i
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (2,972) (14,056) (1276'%? #
Increase (decrease) in accounts glylble 2;,%8 ; 2,435 2'895
(Increase) decrease in customer eposits X - X
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses _an , _290) _4n
‘Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $311.651 $22.692. $339.343
O e mpense § 110,844 - $ 110844 ;
Interest paid 111,296 - - 111,296 '
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
|
!
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION e
e
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 1998
Jack Gay, Jr. Mayor USF&G 10,000
Leroy Scott Alderman Ward 4 USF&G 10,000
Robert F. Langford Alderman Ward 1 USF&G 10,000
Charles E. Holbrook Alderman Ward 3 USF&G 10,000
Donald H. Rowell Alderman Ward 2 USF&G 10,000
Willie W. Hinton Alderman at Large USF&G 10,000
Priscilla C. Daniel City Clerk USF&G 50,000
Jean Marie Ishee Accounting Clerk Aectna Life 10,000
Cecelia A. Breland Water Department Cashier Aetna Life 10,000
Ava Pickett Deputy Clerk Aetna Life 10,000
Rodney Jarrell Police Chief Aetna Life 50,000

»
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CITY OF Pgl':l‘Aln MlSSlSS%’;l
SCHEDULE n
o SCHEDULE O e Toos
Balance Transactions Balance
Outstanding During Fiscal Year Outstanding
Definition and Pupase 100197 _Jssued _Redeemed —9nomes
General Obligation Bonds:
Separate School District $ 1,090,000 S - $ 170,000 $ 920,000
Sewer refunding 1,060,000 - X 810,000
Refunding __420000 — 50000 370000
Total _2.570.000 —— 470,000 2100000
Revenue Bonds:
Water and Sewer Series 1993 _660.000 —_— 30,000 630000
Official Long-term Debt:
i of participation 455,000 - 30,000 425,000
Sewer abatement nots 171,189 - 20,892 150,297
Revolving fund loan 742,070 - 29,337 712,733
Five year note 50000 —_— 25000 25000
Total 1418259 — 105229 1313030
Capital Lease Payable 31076 172,022 21304 __187.794
Total 14685335, 312022, $626.533, $4230.824
e ]
) CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
RECONCILIATION OF ORIGINAL AD VALOREM TAX ROLLS TO FUND COLLECTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 ’ .
City:
: $ 17,039,941 . .
Personal-other than a0 193247 . .
Utilities 4,106,045 . -
Auto and mobile home (remitted by county) 3336204 . -
Total City ¢ 36.27 mills 28614691 $ 1,037,855 -
Less: Homestead excmption allowed . 169.602) $ 968,253
Add: Homessesd reismbursement . . 45998
Scperate School District:
Realty 39,846,217 - .
Personal-other then suto 10,140,001 . .
Urilities 6,670,197 - .
Auto and mobile home (remitsed by county) 16,543252 . .
Special homestead exomption - .
Total SSD a2 61.43 mills 61642980 4,156,968 .
Less: Homestead m allowed - mm 3,632,152 £z
Deduct: Comsaissions to county . - ™ o e,
Add: Homestoad reimbursement - . B A e
To be sccounted for . R m ........ ‘
__faxss  REMBURSEMENT _TOTAL B
Colloctions Allocated To:
General fund s S36TM s 4599 $602.772
2.5 milkion sewer bond fund 306891 - - 306,891
SSD school note 231,830 . 21,830
Library fund $6,23 - 36,223
SSD school note 49 . 54497
Tomls JaJeen asm J‘JI‘.E‘III
Balance M
Penalties and interest . 03.702)
collected v . A .
Total accounted for .
CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI

REPORT TO MANAGEMENT
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EXHIBIT "A"

Wright, King & Company, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

#10 Plaza Drive
P.0. Box 16433
Hartiesburg, MS 39402
(601) 238-3135 - (601) 261-3922 - Fax
Douglas A. King, CPA ) Members
Willoughby C. Wright, CPA Mississippi Society Of
Marcia N. Wright, CPA . Certified Public Accountants
American Institute of
Ann Scott Henderson, CPA Certified Public Accountants

Samantha J. Kirschbaum, CPA

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Petal, Mississippi

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Petal for the year ended September 30, 1998, and have issued our
report dated December 21, 1998, thereon.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and procedures prescribed by the State Department of
Audit, and accordingly included such other auditing procedures as we deemed necessary.

During the course of our audit we detected no matters that would have a matefial effect on the financial statements or deviatiors from
generally accepted accounting principles.

We would like to make the following suggestions to the City in the area of accounting control and procedures:

A. Water and Sewer Department

1) Check with BBI abdut interfacing the billing process with the general ledger so that the accounts receivable balance
in financial statements will be current and reconcilable.

2) Go to online processing of cash receipts at teller window in the same manner as is currently being done for permits
and tax receipts.

71

Management Report
Page Two
December 21, 1998

B. Court Clerk
1) Go to online issuance of cash receipts and updating of outstanding fines.
2) Collect fines at court date if possible.
C. Civic Center
1) Develop online calendar for booking rooms.
2) Develop log of deposits in conjunction with calendar.

D. Recreation N
1) Cash out concessions on a daily basis and reduce inventories to minimal quantities.

2) Limit access to concession areas.

We hope that the Board will consider these suggestions and will be happy to assist the City in implementing any and all of the suggestions.

Sincerely,

WRIGHT, KING & COMPANY, P-A.
1581881
e er 1, 1008 TP

~
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EXHIBIT "B"

This document has important legal consequences;

or modification. This document should be adapte
the Controlling Law.

consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use
d to the particular circumstances of the contemplated Project and

STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Prepared by

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

and
Issued and Published Jointly By

. |
: éli. = g::::::i'oi:‘l::;;;:eors m

AMERICAN CONSULTING &2 Protessional Enginesrs In Private Practics AMERICAN SOCIETY OF
ENGINEERS COUNCIL CIVIL ENGINEERS

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS IN PRIVATE PRACTICE N
a practice division of the
NATIONAL SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

AMERICAN CONSULTING ENGINEERS COUNCIL

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS -

This Agreement has been prepared for use with the Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (No.
1910-8, 1996 Edition) of the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee. Their provisions are interrelated, and
a change in one may necessitate a change in the other. For guidance in the preparation of Supplementary

Conditions, see Guide to the Preparation of Supplementary Conditions (No. 1910-17) (1996 Edition). For guidance
on the completion and use of this Agreement, see EJCDC Users Guide, No. 1910-50.

EICDC No. 1910-1 (1996 Edition)
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EXHIBIT "B"

STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

(“Effective Date™) between

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of
(CDBG 8-295-PF-01) ‘
8
X

(“OWNER™) and

e City of Petal, MIssissippi

Shows, Dearman & Waits, In.c, (“ENGINEER").

em Renovation, to include preparation

ODWNER intends to Wastewater Svyst

mg_g_ng_s.p_e&iﬁs_aﬂQDLand to include administrative and
ommunity

ion engineering inspection necessary to implement C

construct

Development Bloék Grant 8-295-PF-01

(“Project™).

OWNER and ENGINEER in consideration of their mutual covenants as set forth he.re'm agree as follows:

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
Page 1 of 12
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ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF ENGINEER

1.01 Scope

A. ENGINEER shall provide the Basic and Additional
Services set forth herein and in Exhibit A.

B. Upon this Agreement becoming effective,

ENGINEER is authorized to begin Basic Services as set forth
in Exhibit A.

C. If authorized by OWNER, ENGINEER shall furnish
Resident  Project  Representative(s) with  duties,

responsibilities and limitations of authority as set forth in
Exhibit D.

ARTICLE 2 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES '

2.01 General

A. OWNER shall have the responsibilities set forth
herein and in Exhibit B.

" ARTICLE 3 - TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES

3.01 General

A. ENGINEER's services and compensation under this
Agreement have been agreed to in anticipation of the orderly
and continuous progress of the Project through completion.
Unless specific periods of time or specific dates for providing
services are specified in this Agreement, ENGINEER's
obligation to render services hereunder will be for a period

which may reasonably be required for the completion of said
services.

B. If in this Agreement specific periods of time for
rendering services are set forth or specific dates by which
services are to be completed are provided, and if such
periods of time or dates are changed through no fault of
ENGINEER, the rates. and amounts of compensation
provided for herein shall be subject to equitable adjustment.
If OWNER has requested changes in the scope, extent, or
character of the Project, the time of performance of
ENGINEER's services shall be adjusted equitably.

C. For purposes of this Agreement the term “day”
means a calendar day of 24 hours.

Standard Form of Agreement

IIBII

wt

3.02 Suspension

A. If OWNER fails to give prompt written authorization
to proceed with any phase of services after completion of the
immediately preceding phase, or if ENGINEER's services
are delayed through no fault of ENGINEER, ENGINEER

~ may, after giving seven days written notice to OWNER,

suspend services under this Agreement.

B. If ENGINEER's services are delayed or susﬁended in -

whole or in part by OWNER, or if ENGINEER's services
are extended by Contractor's actions or inactions for more
than 90 days through no fault of ENGINEER, ENGINEER
shall be entitled to equitable adjustment of rates and amounts
of compensation provided for elsewhere in this Agreement to
reflect, reasonable costs incurred by ENGINEER in
connection ' with, among other things, such delay or
suspension and reactivation and the fact that the time for
performance under this Agreement has been revised.

ARTICLE 4 - PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER

4.01 Methods of Payment for

Services
Reimbursable Expenses of ENGINEER

and

A. For Basic Services. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER

for Basic Services performed or furnished under Exhibit A,
. Part 1, as set forth in Exhibit C.

B. For Additional Services.  OWNER shall pay
ENGINEER for Additional Services performed or furnished
under Exhibit A, Part 2, as set forth in Exhibit C.

C. For Reimbursable Expenses. In addition to payments
provided for in paragraphs 4.01.A and 4.01.B, OWNER
shall pay ENGINEER for Reimbursable Expenses incurred

by ENGINEER and ENGINEER's Consultants as set fonh in
Exhibit C.

4.02 Other Provisions Concerning Payments

A. Preparation of Invoices. Invoices will be prepared in
accordance with ENGINEER's standard invoicing practices
and will be submitted to OWNER by ENGINEER, unless
otherwise agreed. The amount billed in each invoice will be
calculated as set forth in Exhibit C.

B. Payment of Invoices. Invoices are due and payable
within 30 days of receipt. If OWNER fails to make any
payment due ENGINEER for services and expenses within
30 days after receipt of ENGINEER's invoice therefor, the

amounts due ENGINEER will be increased at the rate of-

1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitte

Between Owner and Engineer for Profmxonal Services
- ?Page 2 of 12

A LA P
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EXHIBIT

~law, if less) from said thirtieth day. In addition,
GINEER may, after giving seven days written notice to
YNER, suspend services under this Agreement until
{GINEER has been paid in full all amounts due for
~vices, expenses, and other related charges. Payments will
" credited first to interest and then to principal.

C. Disputed Invoices. In the event of a disputed or
ntested invoice, only that portion so contested may be

ithheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be
_id. ‘

D. Payments Upon Termination.

1. In the event of any termination under paragraph
6.06, ENGINEER will be entitled to invoice OWNER and
will be paid in accordance with Exhibit C for all services
performed or furnished and all Reimbursable Expenses
incurred through the effective date of termination.

2. In the event of termination by OWNER for
avenience or by ENGINEER for cause, ENGINEER,
in addition to invoicing for those items identified in
subparagraph 4.02.D.1, shall be entitled to invoice
OWNER and shall be paid a reasonable amount for
services and expenses directly attributable to termination,
both before and after the effective date of termination,
such as reassignment of personnel, costs of terminating
contracts with ENGINEER's Consultants, and other
related closc-out costs, using methods and rates for
Additional Services as set forth in Exhibit C.

E. Records of ENGINEER's Costs.  Records of
ENGINEER's costs pertinent to ENGINEER's compensation
under this Agreement shall be kept in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. To the extent
necessary to verify ENGINEER’s charges and upon

OWNER's timely request, copies of such records will be
made available to OWNER at cost.

F. Legislarive Actions. In the event of legislative actions
after the Effective Date of the Agreement by any level of
government that impose taxes, fees, or costs on
ENGINEER's services or other costs in connection with this
Project or compensation therefor, such new taxes, fees, or
costs shall be invoiced to and paid by OWNER as a

imbursable Expense to which a Factor of 1.0 shall be

lied. ‘Should such taxes, fees, or costs be imposed, they

all be in addition to ENGINEER's estimated total
compensation.

Standard Form of Agreement
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ARTICLE 5 - OPINIONS OF éOST

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost

A. ENGINEER's opinions of probable Construction Cost
provided for herein are to be made on the basis of
ENGINEER's experience and qualifications and represent
ENGINEER's best judgment as an experienced and qualified
professional generally familiar with the industry. However,
since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor,
materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or
over the Contractor’s methods of determining prices, or over
competitive bidding or market conditions, ENGINEER
cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual
Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable
Construction Cost prepared by ENGINEER. 1If OWNER
wishes greater assurance as to probable Construction Cost,

OWNER shall employ an independent cost - estimator as
provided in Exhibit B.

5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit -

-A. If a Construction Cost limit is established between
OWNER and ENGINEER, such Construction Cost limit and
a statement of ENGINEER s rights and responsibilities with

respect thereto will be specifically set forth in Exhibit F,
“Construction Cost Limit,” to this Agreement.
5.03 Opinions of Total Project Costs

A. ENGINEER assumes no responsibility for the
accuracy of opinions of Total Project Costs.

ARTICLE 6 - GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

6.01 Standards of Performance

A. The standard of care for all professional engineering
and related services performed or furnished by ENGINEER -
under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily
used by members of ENGINEER's profession practicing
under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same
locality. ENGINEER makes no warranties, express or

implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection
with ENGINEER’s services.

B. ENGINEER shall be responsible for the technical
accuracy of its services and documents resulting therefrom,
and OWNER shall not be responsible for discovering
deficiencies therein. ENGINEER shall correct such
deficiencies without additional compensation except t0 the

PR
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extent such action is directly attributable to deficiencies in
OWNER-furnished information.

C. ENGINEER shall perform or furnish professional
engineering and related services in all phases of the Project
to which this Agreement applies. ENGINEER shall serve as
OWNER's prime professional for the Project. ENGINEER
may employ such ENGINEER's Consultants as ENGINEER
deems necessary to assist in the performance or furnishing of
the services. ENGINEER shall not be required to employ
any ENGINEER’s Consultant unacceptable to ENGINEER.

D. ENGINEER and OWNER shall comply with
applicable Laws or Regulations and OWNER-mandated
standards. This Agreement is based on these requirements as
of its Effective Date. Changes to these requirements after
the Effective Date of this Agreement may be the basis for
modifications to OWNER's - responsibilities or to

ENGINEER's scope of services, times of performance, or
compensation.

E. OWNER shall be responsible for, and ENGINEER
may rely upon, the accuracy and completeness of all
requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and other
information furnished by OWNER t0 ENGINEER pursuant
to this Agreement. ENGINEER may use such requirements,

reports, data, and information in performing or furnishing -

services under this Agreement.

F. OWNER shall make decisions and carry out its other
responsibilities in a timely manner and shall bear all costs

incident thereto so as not to delay the services of
ENGINEER. )

G. Prior to the commencement of the Construction
Phase, OWNER shall notify ENGINEER of any variations
from the language indicated in Exhibit E, “Notice of
Acceptability of Work,” or of any other notice or
certification that ENGINEER will be requested to provide to
OWNER or third parties in connection with the Project.
OWNER and ENGINEER shall reach agreement on the
terms of any such requested notice or certification, and
OWNER shall authorize such Additional Services as are

necessary to enable ENGINEER to provide the notices or
certifications requested.

H. ENGINEER shall not be required to sign any
documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result
in the ENGINEER’s having to certify, guarantee or warrant
the existence of conditions whose existence the ENGINEER
cannot ascertain. OWNER agrees not to make resolution of
any dispute with the ENGINEER or payment of any amount
due to the ENGINEER in any way contingent upon the
ENGINEER's signing any such certification.

e RO St 0 e d 3 L 2 RS IR ARSI

I During the Construction Phase, ENGINEER shall not
supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor’s work,

nor shall ENGINEER have ‘authority over or responsibility
for the means, methods, * techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction selected by Contractor, for safety
precautions and programs incident to the Contractor’s work
in progress, nor for any failure of Contractor to co
Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s furnishing
and performing the Work.

J. ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of
any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any
Contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents.

K. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or
omissions of any Contractor(s), subcontractor or supplier, or
of any of the Contractor’s agents or employees or any other
persons (except ENGINEER's own employees) at the Site or
otherwise furnishing or performing any of the Contractor's
work; or for any decision made on interpretations or
clarifications of the Contract Documents given by OWNER
without consultation and advice of ENGINEER.

L. The General Conditions for any construction contract
documents prepared hereunder are to be the “Standard
General Conditions of the Construction Contract” as prepared
by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee
(Document No. 1910-8, 1996 Edition) unless both parties

mutually agree to use other General Conditions as specifically
referenced in Exhibit J.

6.02  Authorized Project Representatives

A. Contemporaneous with the execution of this
Agreement, ENGINEER and OWNER shall designate
specific individuals to act as ENGINEER's and OWNER's
representatives with respect to the services to be performed
or furnished by ENGINEER and responsibilities of OWNER
under this Agreement. Such individuals shall have authoriry
1o transmit instructions, receive-information, and render
decisions relative to the Project on behalf of each respective
party.

6.03 Design without Construction Phnse Services

A. Should OWNER provide Construction Phase services
with either OWNER'’s representatives or a third party,
ENGINEER's Basic Services under this Agreement will be
considered to be completed upon completion of the Final

Design Phase or Bidding or Negotiating Phase as outlined in
Exhibit A.

Standard Form of Agreement
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B. It is understood and agreed that if ENGINEER's
ic Services under this Agreement do not include Project
ervation, or review of the Contractor’s performance, or
other Construction Phase services, and that such services
| be provided by OWNER, then OWNER assumes all
ponsibility for interpretation of the Contract Documents
1 for construction observation or review and waives any
ims against the ENGINEER that may be in any way
mected thereto.

)4 UseofDocuments (SEE INSERT)
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6.05 Insurance

A. ENGINEER shall procure and mamtam insurance as
set forth in Exhibit G, “Insurance.”

B. OWNER shall procure and maintain insurance as set
forth in Exhibit G, “Insurance.” OWNER shall cause
ENGINEER and ENGINEER's Consultants to be listed as
additional insureds on any general liability or property
insurance policies carried by OWNER which are applicable
to the Project.

C. OWNER shall require Contractor to purchase and
maintain general liability and other insurance as specified in
the Contract Documents and to cause ENGINEER and
ENGINEER's Consultants to be listed as additional insureds
with respect to such liability and other insurance purchased
and maintained by Contractor for the Project.

D. OWNER and ENGINEER shall each deliver to the
other certificates of insurance evidencing the coverages
indicated in Exhibit G. Such certificates shall be furnished
prior to commencement of ENGINEER’s services and at
renewals thereafter during the life of the Agreement.

E. All policies of property insurance shall contain
provisions to the effect that ENGINEER’s and ENGINEER's
Consultants’ interests are covered and that in the event of
paymcnt of any loss or damage the insurers will have no

Standard Form of Agrecment
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rights of recovery against any of the insureds or additional
insureds thereunder.

F. Atany time, OWNER may request that ENGINEER,
at OWNER'’s sole expense, provide additional insurance
coverage, increased limits, or revised deductibles that are
more protective than those specified in Exhibit G. If so
requested by OWNER, with the concurrence of ENGINEER,
and if commercially available, ENGINEER shall obtain and
shall requirc ENGINEER's Consultants to obtain such
additional insurance coverage, different limits, or revised
deductibles ' for such periods of time as requested by
OWNER, and Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate
these requirements.

6.06 ~ Termination

A. The obligation to provide further services under this
Agreement may be terminated:

1. For cause,

a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in
the event of substantial failure by the other party to
perform in accordance with the terms hereof through
no fault of the terminating party.

b. By ENGINEER:

1) upon seven days written notice if
ENGINEER believes that ENGINEER is being
requested by OWNER to furnish or perform
services contrary to ENGINEER's
responsibilities as a licensed professional; or

2) upon seven days written notice if the
ENGINEER’s .services for the Project are
delayed or suspended for more than 90 days for
reasons beyond ENGINEER's control.

3) ENGINEER shall have no liability to
OWNER on account of such termination.

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this
Agreement will not terminate as a result of such
substantial failure if the party receiving such notice
begins, within seven days of receipt of such notice,
to correct its failure to perform and proceeds
diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30
days of receipt thereof; provided, however, that if
and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be
reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if
such party has diligently attempted to cure the same
and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same,

IR e hy s g

then the cure period provided for herein shall extend
up to, but in no case more than, 60 days after the
date of receipt of the notice.

2. For convenience,

a. By OWNER effective upon the receipt of

notice by ENGINEER.

B. The terminating party under paragraphs 6.06.A.1 or
6.06.A.2 may set the effective date of termination at a time
up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to allow
ENGINEER to demobilize personnel and equipment from the
Site, to complete tasks whose value would otherwise be lost,
to prepare notes as to the status of completed and

uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in
orderly files.

6.07 Controlling Law

A. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the
state in which the Project is located..

6.08  Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries .

A. OWNER and ENGINEER each is hereby bound and »
. the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal

representatives of OWNER and ENGINEER (and to the
extent permitted by paragraph 6.08.B the assigns of OWNER
and ENGINEER) are hereby bound to the other party to this
Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors,
administrators and legal representatives (and said assigns) of

such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements and
obligations of this Agreement.

B. Neither OWNER nor ENGINEER may assign,

sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but

without limitation, moneys that are due or may become due)
in this Agreement without the written consent of the other,
except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or
transfer is mandated or restricted by law. Unless specifically
stated to the contrary in any  written consent to an

assignmcnt no assignment will release or discharge the

assignor from any duty or responslbxluy under this
Agreement.

C. Unless 'expre.;.siy provided otherwise in this
Agreement: _ _ .

1. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to

create, impose, or give rise to any duty owed by OWNF

or ENGINEER to any Contractor, Contractor
subcontractor, supplier, other individual or entity, or to
any surety for or employee of any, of them '
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2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant
to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive
benefit of OWNER and ENGINEER and not for the
benefit of any other party. -The OWNER agrees that the
substance of the provisions of this paragraph 6.08.C shall
appear in the Contract Documents.

6.09 Dispute Resolution

A. OWNER and ENGINEER agree to negotiate all
disputes between them in good faith for a period of 30 days
from the date of notice prior to exercising their rights under
Exhibit H or other provisions of this Agreement, or under
law. In the absence of such an agreement, the parties may
exercise their rights under law.

B. If and to the extent that OWNER and ENGINEER
have agreed on a method and procedure for resolving .
disputes between them arising out of or relating to this
Agreement, such dispute resolution method and procedure is

forth in Exhibit H, “Dispute Resolution.”

Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. OWNER represents to Engineer that to the best of its

knowledge a Hazardous Environmental Condition does not
exist.

B. OWNER has disclosed to the best of its knowledge to
ENGINEER the existence of all Asbestos, PCB’s, Petroleum,
Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Material located at or near
the Site, including type, quantity and location.

C. If a Hazardous Environmental Condition is
encountered or alleged, ENGINEER shall have the obligation
to notify OWNER and, to the extent of applicable Laws and
Regulations, appropriate governmental officials.

D. Itis acknowledged by both parties that ENGINEER's
scope of services does not include any services related to a
Hazardous Environmental Condition. In the event
ENGINEER or any other party encounters a Hazardous
Environmental Condition, ENGINEER may, at its option and
without liability for consequential or any other damages,
suspend performance of services on the portion of the Project
affected thereby untii OWNER: . (i) retains appropriate
specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify and, as

propriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous
vironmental Condition; and (ii) warrants that the Site is in
11 compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations.

E. OWNER acknowledges that ENGINEER is
performing professional services for OWNER and that
ENGINEER is not and shall not be required to become an

y“{.ﬂ‘.,\.‘ e et g -
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“arranger,” “operator,” “generator,” or “transporter” of
hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of
1990 (CERCLA), which are or may be encountered at or

near the Site in connection with ENGINEER's activities
under this Agreement.

F. If ENGINEER's services under this Agreement
cannot be performed because of a Hazardous Environmental
Condition, the existence of the condition shall justify
ENGINEER's terminating this Agreement for cause on 30
days notice.

6.11 Allocation of Risks

A. Indemnification

1. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless OWNER,
OWNER'’s officers, directors, partners, and employees
from and against any and all costs, losses, and damages
(including but not limited to all fees and charges of
engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals,
and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution

" costs) caused solely by the negligent acts or omissions of
ENGINEER or ENGINEER's officers, directors,
partners, employees, and ENGINEER's Consultants in

the performance and furnishing of ENGINEER's services
under this Agreement.

2. To the fullest extent permitted by law, OWNER
shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER,
ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees,
and ENGINEER's Consultants from and against any and
all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited
to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys,
and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or
other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the
negligent acts or omissions of OWNER or OWNER's
officers, directors, partners, employees, and OWNER's
consultants with respect to this Agreement or the Project.

3. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
ENGINEER’s total liability to OWNER and anyone
claiming by, through, or under OWNER for any cost,
loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of
ENGINEER and in part by the negligence of OWNER or
any other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed
the percentage share that ENGINEER's negligence bears
to the total negligence of OWNER, ENGINEER, and all
other negligent entities and individuals.

4, In addition fo the indemnity provided under
paragraph 6.11.A.2 of this Agreement, and to the fullest

.~ ..»Standard Form of Agreement -
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
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extent permitted by law, OWNER shall indemnify and hold
harmiess ENGINEER and its officers, directors, partners,
employees, and ENGINEER's Consultants from and against
all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals, and all court or arbitration. or other dispute
resolution costs) caused by, arising out of or resulting from
a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that (i) any
such cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury,
sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of
tangible property (other than completed Work), including the
loss of use resulting therefrom, and (ii) nothing in this
paragraph 6.11.A.4. shall obligate OWNER to indemnify any
individual or entity from and against the consequences of that
individual's or entity’s own negligence or willful misconduct.

5. The indemnification provision of paragraph
6.11.A.1 is subject to and limited by the provisions
agreed to by OWNER and ENGINEER in Exhibit I,
“Allocation of Risks,” if any.

6.12 Notices

A. Any notice required under this Agreement will be in
writing, addressed to the appropriate party at its address on
the signature page and given personally, or by registered or
certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial courier

service. All notices shall be effective upon the date of
receipt. : _

6.13 Survival

A. All express representations, indemnifications, or
limitations of liability included in this Agreement will survive
its completion or termination for any reason.

6.14  Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be

void or unenforceable under any Laws or Regulations shall
be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall
continue to be valid and binding upon OWNER and
ENGINEER, who agree that the Agreement shall be
reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof
with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as
possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

" 6.15 Waiver

A. Non-enforcement of any provision by either party
shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it
affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder
of this Agreement.

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Profmumal Semces

6.16 Headings

A. The headings used in this Agreement are for general
reference only arid do not have special significance.

ARTICLE 7 - DEFINITIONS

7.01 Defined Terms .

A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the
Exhibits hereto) and printed with initial or all capital letters,
the terms listed below have the meanings indicated, which
are applicable t¢ both the singular and plural thereof:

1. Addenda--Written or graphic instruments issued

prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or -

change the Bidding Documents.

2. Additional Services--The services to be
performed for or furnished to OWNER by ENGINEER in
accordance with Exhibit A, Part 2 of this Agreement.

3. Agree}nem-‘lhis =Standard Form of Agreement
between OWNER and ENGINEER for Professional

Services,” including those Exhibits listed in Anicle 8
hereof.

4. Application for Paymens--The form-acceptable to
ENGINEER which is to be used by Contractor in
requesting progress or final payments for the completion
of its Work and which is to be accompanied by such

supporting documemanon as is requlred by the Contract
Documents.

5. Asbestos--Any material that contains more than
one perceni asbestos and is friable or is releasing asbestos
fibers into the air above current action levels established

by the United States Occupational Safety and Health
Administration.

6. Basic Services—-The services to be performed for
or furnished to OWNER by ENGINEER in accordance
with Exhibil A, Part 1, of this Agreement.

7. Bid-The offer or proposal of the bidder
submitted on the prescnbed form settmg forth the prices
for the Work to be performed.

8. FRidding Documents—-The advertisement or
invitation 1o Bid, instructions to bidders, the Bid form and
attachments, the Bid bond, if any, the proposed Contrac*
Documen's, and all Addenda, if any.
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9. Change Order--A document recommended by
ENGINEER, which is signed by Contractor and OWNER
to authorize an addition, deletion or revision in the Work,
or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract

Times, issued on or after the Effective Date of the
Construction Agreement.

10. Construction Agreement--The written instrument
which is evidence of the agreement, contained in the

Contract Documents, between OWNER and Contractor
covering the Work.

11. Construction Contract--The entire and integrated

written agreement between the OWNER and Contractor
concerning the Work.

12. Construction Cost--The cost to OWNER of those
portions of the entire Project designed or specified by

'ENGINEER. Construction Cost does not include costs of
services of ENGINEER or other design professionals and

consultants, cost of land, rights-of-way, or compensation
for damages to properties, or OWNER's costs for legal,
accounting, insurance counseling or auditing services, or
interest and financing charges incurred in connection with
the Project, or the cost of other services to be provided by
others to OWNER pursuant to Exhibit B of this
Agreement. Construction Cost is one of the items
comprising Total Project Costs.

13. Contract Documents--Documents that establish
the rights and obligations of the parties engaged in
construction and include the Construction Agreement
between OWNER and Contractor, Addenda (which
pertain to the Contract Documents), Contractor’s Bid
(including documentation accompanying the Bid and any
post-Bid documentation submitted prior to the notice of
award) when attached as an exhibit to the Construction
Agreement, the notice to proceed, the bonds, appropriate
centifications, the General Conditions, the Supplementary
Conditions, the Specifications and the Drawings as the
same are more specifically identified in the Construction
Agreement, together with all Written Amendments,
Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders,
and ENGINEER's written interpretations  and
clarifications issued on or after the Effective Date of the
Construction Agreement. Approved Shop Drawings and
the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical
conditions are not Contract Documents.

14. Contract Price--The moneys payable by OWNER
to Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance
with the Contract Documents and as stated in the
Construction Agreement.

.. PAGE,_ 2,09

15. Contract Times--The numbers of days or the

_ dates stated in the Construction Agreement to: (i) achieve

Substantial Completion, and (ii) complete the Work so
that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by
ENGINEER's written recommendation of final payment.

16. Contractor--An individual or entity with whom ~

OWNER enters into a Construction Agreement.

17. Correction Period--The time after Substantial
Completion during which Contractor must correct, at no
cost to OWNER, any Defective Work, normally one year
after the date of Substantial Completion or such longer
period of time as may be prescribed by Laws or
Regulations or by the terms of any applicable special

guarantee Of specific provision of the Contract
Documents.

18. Defective--An adjective which, when modifying
the word Work, refers to Work that is unsatisfactory,
faulty, or deficient, in that it does not conform to the
Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements
of any inspection, reference standard, test, or approval
referred to in the Contract Documents, or has been

damaged prior to ENGINEER's recommendation of final
payment.

19. Documents--Data, reports, Drawings,
Specifications, Record Drawings, and other deliverables,
whether in printed or electronic media format, provided

or furnished in appropriate phases by ENGINEER to
OWNER pursuant to this Agreement.

20. Drawings--That part of the Contract Documents
prepared or approved by ENGINEER which graphically
shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be
performed by Contractor. Shop Drawings are not
Drawings as so defined.

21. Effective Date of the Construction Agreemeni--
The date indicated in the Construction Agreement on
which it becomes effective, but if no such date is
indicated, it means the date on which the Construction
Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two
parties to sign and deliver.

22. Effective Date of the Agreement--The date
indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes
effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the
date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered by
the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.

23. ENGINEER's Consultants--Individuals or entities
having a contract with ENGINEER to furnish services

AL ..+ Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
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with respect to this Project as ENGINEER's independent
professional associates, consultants, subcontractors, or

vendors. The term ENGINEER includes ENGINEER'’s
Consultants.

24. Field Order—-A written order issued by
ENGINEER which directs minor changes in the Work but

which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or
the Contract Times.

25. General Conditions-That part of the Contract
Documents which sets forth terms, conditions, and
procedures that govern the Work to be performed or
furnished by Contractor with respect to the Project.

26. Hazardous Environmental Condition—The
presence at the Site of Asbestos, PCB's, Petroleum,
Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Materials in such
quantities or circumstances that may present a substantial

danger to persons or property exposed thereto in
-.connection with the Work.

27. Hazardous Waste--The term Hazardous Waste
shall have the meaning provided in Section 1004 of the

Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Section 6903) as
amended from time to time.

28. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations--Any
and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances,

codes, standards, and orders of any and all governmental

bodies, agencies, authorities, and  courts having
jurisdiction.

29. PCB'’s--Polychlorinated biphenyls.

30. Petroleum-Petroleum, including crude oil or any
fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of
temperature and pressure (60 degrees Fahrenheit and 14.7
pounds per square inch absolute), such as oil, petroleum,
fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse, gasoline, kerosene, and oil
mixed with other non-Hazardous Waste and crude oils.

31. Radioactive Materials--Source, special nuclear,
or byproduct material as defined by the Atomic Energy

Act of 1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et seq.) as amended
from time to time.

32. Record Drawings—-The Drawings as issued for
construction on which the ENGINEER, upon completion
of the Work, has shown _changes due to Addenda or
Change Orders and other information which ENGINEER
considers significant based on record documents furnished
by Contractor to ENGINEER and which were annotated
by Contractor to show changes made during construction.

IIB"

ERCAL el N TP 28 L LU

~

33. Reimbursable Expenses—The expenses incurred
directly by ENGINEER in connection with the performing
or furnishing of Basic and Additional Services for the

Project for which OWNER shall pay ENGINEER as
indicated in Exhibit C.

34. Resident Project Representative--The authorized
representative of ENGINEER, if any, assigned to assist
ENGINEER :t the Site during the Construction Phase.

The Resideat Project Representative will be
employee and under

ENGINEER’s agent or

ENGINEER's supervision. As used herein, the term
Resident Project Representative includes any assistants of
Resident Projsct Representative agreed to by OWNER.

The duties and responsibilities of the Resident Project
Representative are as set forth in Exhibit D.

35. Samples--Physical examples of materials,

equipment, or workmanship that are representative of ’
some portior: of the Work and which establish the -

standards by which such portion of the Work will be
judged.

36. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams,
illustrations, schedules, and other data or information
which are specifically prepared or assembled by or for

Contractor and submitted by Contractor to ENGINEER to

illustrate some portion of the Work.

37. Site-Lands or areas indicated in the Contract
Documents ss being furnished by OWNER upon which
the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements
for access thereto, and such other lands furnished by
OWNER which are designated for use of Contractor.

38. Specifications--That part of the Contract
Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of
materials, equipment, systems, standards, and
workmanship as applied to the Work and certain
administrative details applicable thereto.

39. Substantial Completion--The time at which the
Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the
point where, in the opinion of ENGINEER, the Work (or
a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in
accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the
Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the
purposes for which it is intended.  The terms
“substantially complete™ and “substantially completed” as
applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial
Completion thereof.

.Standard Form of Agreement

Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Semces
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, thc Effectwc Date of which is indicated on

By:_Jack H. Gay,

Title:___Mayor

Date Signed:

Address for giving notices:

P. O. Box 564

Petal, MS 39465

Designated Representative (paragraph 6.02.A):

Title:

Phone Number:

Facsimile Number:

E-Mail Address:

. Standard Form of Agreement
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ENGITR} SHOWS Q:ARMAN & WAITS, INC.

Raymond M. Dearman

y:
Title: Pres ident

Date Signcd:m P\} | Cl ; lq qq

Address for giving notices:
P. O. Box 1711

Hattiesburg, MS 39403

Designated Representative (paragraph 6.02.A):

1

Title:

Phone Number:

Facsimile Number:

E-Mail Address:

- Between Ov{ner and Engineer for Professxonal Services
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40. Supplementary Conditions—That part of the
ntract Documents which amends or supplements the
:neral Conditions.

41. Total Project Costs—The sum of the Construction
sst, allowances for contingencies, the total costs of
rvices of ENGINEER or other design professionals and
ynsultants, cost of land, rights-of-way, or compensation
yr damages to properties, or OWNER’s costs for legal,
scounting, insurance counseling or auditing services, or
Mterest and financing charges incurred in connection with

1¢ Project, or the cost of other services to be provided by
thers to OWNER pursuant to Exhibit B of this
\greement.

42. Work--The entire completed construction or the
various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be
provided under the Contract Documents with respect to
this Project. Work includes and is the result of
performing or furnishing labor, services, and
documentation necessary to produce such construction and
furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and
all equipment into such construction, all as required by
the Contract Documents.

43. Work Change Directive--A written directive to
Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the
Construction Agreement and signed by OWNER upon
recommendation of the ENGINEER, ordering an
addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or responding
to differing or unforeseen subsurface or physical
conditions under which the Work is to be performed or to
emergencies. A Work Change Directive will not change
the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence
that the parties expect that the change directed or
documented by a Work Change Directive will be
incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order
following negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if
any, on the Contract Price or Contract Times.

44. Written Amendment--A written amendment of the
Contract Documents signed by OWNER and Contractor
on or after the Effective Date of the Construction
Agreement and normally dealing with the non-engineering
or non-technical rather than strictly construction-related
aspects of the Contract Documents.

EXHIBIT "B"

ARTICLE 8 - EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

8.01 Exhibits Include«

A. Exhibit A, “ENGINEER's Services,” consisting of
9  pages.

B. Exhibit B, “OWNER's Responsibilities,” consisting

of 3 pages.

C. Exhibit C, “Payments to Engineer for Services and

Reimbursable Expenses,” consisting of _ 3 _ pages.

D. Exhibit D, “Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations

of Authority of Resident Project Representative,” consisting

of 5 pages.

E. Exhibit E, “Notice of Acceptability of Work,”
consisting of Mpages.

F. Exhibit F, “Construction Cost Limit,” consisting of

N/A pages.
G. Exhibit G, “losurance,” consisting of N/A pages.

H. Exhibit H, “Dispute Resolution,”

consisting of
N/A pages. : :

1. Exhibit I, “Allocation of Risks,” consisting of _N /A
pages. ' ‘

pages.
8.02 Total Agreement

A. This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to

" inclusive, together with the Exhibits identified above)

constitutes the entire agreement between OWNER and
ENGINEER and supersedes all prior - written or oral
understandings. This Agreement may only be amended.

supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed
written instrument. : - :

| - ,--::s.‘ i ‘.h:..of... e )
. ‘Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
IR 3P Page 11 of 12
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J. Exhibit J, “Special Provisions,” consisting of __ N /A

st

AR




e

T

CITY OF PETAL e
MINUTE BOOK 18 [STTRURUNSRURIUS - .3 1 & I BN

EXHIBIT "B"

S
. Pive

i : .

B RYat:

BTN

. P e r..xm»ma«m\wwﬁ :

. N W 3

S T i et b e

St

7.1.2 Termination of Contract for Cause

b e B W

R T
LT SR,

If, through any cause, the ENGINEER shall fail to
fulfill in timely and proper manner his obligations under
this Contract, or if the ENGINEER shall violate any of the
covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Contract, the
OWNER shall thereupon have the right to terminate this
Contract by giving written notice to the Contractor of such
termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at
least seven days before the effective date of such
termination. Notwithstanding the above, the ENGINEER shall
not be relieved of liability to the OWNER for damages
sustained by the City be virtue of any breach of the Contract
by the ENGINEER, and the OWNER may withhold any payments to
the ENGINEER for the purpose of setoff until such time as the

exact amount of damages due the OWNER from the ENGINEER is
determined.

e LA

.2 Ownership of Documents

A1l records, including notes, plans and designed,
sketches, charts, maps worksheets and other data shall be
delivered to and become the property of the OWNER, except
that the ENGINEER may retain a copy of all data for their
records. The OWNER shall in no way be limited in the
subsequent use of the development material of ideas resulting
in.or from the development of the Project.

7.2.1 Access to and Retention of Records

7.2.1.1 The ENGINEER shall allow authorized
representatives of the OWNER and appropriate and concerned
agencies of the state and federal government access to any
records of the ENGINEER which are directly pertinent to the
Project which is the subject of this Agreement for the

purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts and
transcriptions.

7.2.1.2 All records pertinent to the Project shall be
retained by the ENGINEER for the period of three years from

the date of completion of services provided under this
Agreement. '

7.2.2 Standard HUD Contractual Clauses

The standard contractual clauses required by the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development are
contained in Exhibit A "Standard HUD Contractual
Requirements" which is to be identified, attached to and made
a part of this Agreement.
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SUGGESTED FORMAT
(for use with 1910-1, 1996 Edition)

This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of ® -~ pages, referred to in and

part of the Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER for
Professional Services dated

Initial:
OWNER
ENGINEER

'NGINEER'’s Services

urticle 1 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties. ENGINEER
hall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below.

’ART 1 -- BASIC SERVICES
A1.01 Study and Report Phase
A. ENGINEER shall:

1. Consult with OWNER to define and clarify OWNER's requirements for the Project and available data.

2. Ad;/ise OWNER as to the necessity of OWNER's providing data or services of the types described in
Exhibit B which are not part of ENGINEER's Basic Services, and assist OWNER in obtaining such data and services.

3. ldentify, consult with, and analyze requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to approve

the portions of the Project designed or specified by ENGINEER, including but not limited to mitigating measures.
identified in the environmental assessment.

4. ldentify and evaluate _N/A alternate solutions available to OWNER and, after consultation with -

OWNER, recommend to OWNER those solutions which in ENGINEER's judgment meet OWNER's requirements for
the Project.

5. Prepare a report (the “Report™) which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts, sketches and
conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the agreed-to requirements, considerations involved,
and those alternate solutions available to OWNER which ENGINEER recommends. This Report will be accompanied
by ENGINEER’s opinion of Total Project Costs for each solution which is so recommended for the Project with each
component separately itemized, including the following, which will be separately itemized: opinion of probable
Construction Cost, allowances for contingencies and for the estimated total costs of design, professional, and related

services provided by ENGINEER and, on the basis of information furnished bty OWNER, allowances for other items
and services included within the definition of Total Project Costs.

6. Perform or provide the following additional Study and Report Phase tasks or deliverables:

7. Fumnish _N/A review copies of the Report to OWNER withiny /\days of authorization to begm services
and review it with OWNER.

8. Revise the Report in response to OWNER's and other parties’ comments, as appropnatc and furnish N/A
final copies of the revised Report to the OWNER withitN / A days after completion of reviewing it with OWNER.

B. ENGINEER's services under the Study and Report Phase will be considered complcte on the date when the final
copies of the revised Report have been delivered to OWNER.

L.f ";, v h J"‘}\d
ety Page 1 of L?.‘Pagu
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A1.02 Preliminary Design Phase

A. After acceptance by OWNER of the Report, selection by OWNER of a recommended solution and indication of

any specific modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of the Project desired by
OWNER, and upon written authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER shall:

1. On the basis of the above acceptance, selection, and authorization, prepare Preliminary Design Phase

documents consisting of final design criteria, preliminary drawings, outline specifications and written descriptions of
the Project. .

2. Provide necessary field surveys and topographic and utility mapping for design purposes. Utility mapping
will be based upon information obtained from utility owners.
3. Advise OWNER if additional iepqns, data, information, or services of the types described in Exhibit B are
necessary and assist OWNER in obtaining such reports, data, information, or services. S

4. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents, submit a revised opinion of

probable Construction Cost and any adjustments to Total Project Costs known to ENGINEER, which will be itemized
as provided in paragraph A1.01.A.5.

5. Perform or provide the following additional Preliminary Design Phase tasks or deliverables:
6. Furnish the Preliminary Design Phase documents to and review them with OWNER.

7. Submit to OWNER N / Minal copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents and revised opinion of
probable Construction Cost withinN / Adays after authorization to proceed with this phase.

B. ENGINEER’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when final
copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents have been delivered to OWNER.

A1.03  Final Design Phase

A. After acceptance by OWNER of the Preliminary Design Phase documents and revised opinion of probable
Construction Cost as determined in the Preliminary Design Phase, but subject to any OWNER-directed modifications or

changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of or for the Project, and upon written authorization from
OWNER, ENGINEER shall:

1. On the basis of the above acceptance, direction, and authorization, prepare final Drawings indicating the
scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. Specifications will be

prepared, where appropriate, in general conformance with the 16-division format of the Construction Specifications
Institute. .

2. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for OWNER'’s use in filing applications for

permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve the final design of the

Project and assist OWNER in consultations with appropriate authorities.

3. Advise OWNER of any adjﬁstmems to the opinion of probable Construction Cost and any adjustments to
Total Project Costs known to ENGINEER, itemized as provided in paragraph A1.01.A.5.

4. Perform or provide the following additional Final Design Phase tasks or deliverables:

“Page2of 9 Pages [
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S. Prepare and furnish Bidding Documents for review and approval by OWNER, its légal counsel, and other
advisors, as appropriate, and assist OWNER in the preparation of other related documents.

6. Submit N /Sinal copies of the Bidding Documents and a revised cpinion of pmbabfe Construction Cost to
OWNER withirN / A days after authorization to proceed with this phase.

B. In the event that the Work designed or specified by ENGINEER is to be performed or furnished under more than

one prime contract, or if ENGINEER's services are to be separately sequenced with the work of one or more prime
Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking), OWNER and ENGINEER shall, prior to commencement of the Final
Design Phase, develop a schedule for performance of ENGINEER's services during the Final Design, Bidding or
Negotiating, Construction, and Post-Construction Phases in order to sequence and coordinate properly such services as are

applicable to the work under such separate prime contracts. This schedule is to be prepared and included in or become an
amendment to Exhibit A whether or not the work under such contracts is to proceed concurrently. -

C.: The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by ENGINEER upon which the ENGINEER's
compensation has been established under this Agreementis N/A .

D. ENGINEER's services under the Final Design Phase will be considered completc on the date when the submmals
required by paragraph A1.03.A.6 have been delivered to OWNER.

Al1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase

A. After acceptance by OWNER of the Bidding Documents and the most recent opinion of probable Construction
Cost as determined in the Final Design Phase, and upon written authorization by OWNER to proceed, ENGINEER shall:

1. Assist OWNER in advertising for and obtaining bids or negotiating propoﬂs for the Work and, where
applicable, maintain a record of prospective bidders to whom Bidding Dacuments have been issued, attend pre-Bid
conferences, if any, and receive and process Contractor deposits or charges for the Bidding Documents.

2. Issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Documents.

3. Consult with OWNER as to the acceptability of subcontractors, suppliers, and other individuals and entities

proposed by Contractor for those portions of the Work as to which such acceptabilitj is required by the Bidding
Documents.

4. Perform or provide the following additional Bidding or Negotiating Phase tasks or deliverables:

5. Auend the Bid opening, prepare Bid tabulation sheets, and assist OWNER in evaluating Bids or proposals and
in assemblmg and awarding contracts for the Work.

- B. The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upor. commencement of the Construction Phase or

upon-cessation of negotiations with prospective Contractors (except as may te reqmred if Exhibit F is a part of this
Agreement).

A1.05 Construction Phase

A. Upon successful completion of the Bidding and Negotiating Phase, and upon written authorization from OWNE
ENGINEER shall:

1. General Administration of Construction Contract. Consult with OWNER and act as OWNER'’s representative

as provided in the General Conditions. The extent and limitations of the duties, responsibilities and authority of
ENGINEER as assigned in said General Conditions shall not be modificd, except as ENGINEER may otherwise agree

Page 3 of 9-- Pages
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in writing. All of OWNER'’s instructions to Contractor will be issued through ENGINEER, who shall have authority

to act on behalf of OWNER in dealings with Contractor to the extent provided in this Agreement and said General
Conditions except as otherwise provided in writing.

2. Resident Project Representative (RPR). Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist the ENGINEER
and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor’s work. Duties, responsibilities, and authority of the RPR

are as set forth in Exhibit D. The furnishing of such RPR’s services will not extend ENGINEER's responsibilities or
authority beyond the specific limits set forth elsewhere in this Agreement. ’

3. Selecting Indépendent Testing Laboratory. Assist OWNER in the selection of an independent testing
laboratory to perform the services identified in paragraph .B2.01.0

4. Pre-Construction Conference. Participate in a Pre-Construction Conference prior to commencement of Work
at the Site. :

5. Baselines and Benchmarks. As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for locating the Work which
in ENGINEER's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed.

6. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction. In connection with

observations of Contractor’s work in
progress while it is in progress:

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, as ENGINEER deems
necessary, in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the progress and quality of the
Work. Such visits and observations by ENGINEER, and the Resident Project Representative, if any, are not i
intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of Contractor’s work in progress or to involve detailed
inspections of Contractor’s work in progress beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER in 4
this Agreement and the Contract Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and
similar methods of general observation of the Work based on ENGINEER's exercise of professional judgment as
assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if any. Based on information obtained during such visits and such
observations, ENGINEER will determine in genera

1 if Contractor’s work is proceeding in accordance with the
Contract Documents, and ENGINEER shall keep OWNER informed of the progress of the Work.

Lo,
K .

b. The purpose of ENGINEER's visits to, and representation by the Resident Projéct Representative, if any,
at the Site, will be to enable ENGINEER to better carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and
undertaken by ENGINEER during the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of ENGINEER's

efforts as an experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for OWNER a greater degree of confidence

that the completed Work will conform in general to the Contract Documents and that the integrity of the design

concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents has been
implemented and preserved by Contractor. ENGINEER shall not,

during such visits or as a result of such
observations of Contractor’s work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor’s work, nor

shall ENGINEER have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, Of

procedures of construction selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to Contractor’s

work, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s furnishing
" and performing the Work. Accordingly, ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any Contractor nor

assumes responsibility for any Contractor’s failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the
Contract Documents.

7. Defective Work. Recommend to OWNER that Contractor’s work be disapproved and rejected while it is in
progress if, on the basis of such observations, ENGINEER believes that such work will not produce a completed
Project that conforms generally to the Contract Documents or that it will prejudice the integrity of the design concept
of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents.

8. Clarifications and Interpretations; Field Orders. Issue necessary clarifications and interpretations of the
‘Contract Documents as appropriate to the orderly completion of Contractor’s work. Such clarifications and

Page 4 of 9 Pages
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interpretations will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents.
ENGINEER may issue Field Orders authorizing minor variations from the requirements of the Contract Documents.

9. Change Orders and Work Change Directives. Recommend Change Orcers and Work Change Directives to
OWNER, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work Change Directives as required. )

10. Shop Drawings and Samples. Review and approve or take other appropriate action in respect to Shop
Drawings and Samples and other data which Contractor is required to submit, but only for conformance with the
information given in the Contract Documents and compatibility with the design concept of the completed Project as a ;
functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents. Such reviews and approvals or other action will not extend :
to means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction or to safety precautions and programs incident

thereto. ENGINEER has an obligation to meet any Contractor’s submittal schedule that has earlier been acceptable to
ENGINEER.

11. Substitutes and “or-equal.” Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or “or-equal” materials and Q
equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the provisions of paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A. . f

12. Inspections and Tests. Require such special inspections or tests of Contractor’s work as deemed reasonably ‘
necessary, and receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by Laws and
Regulations or the Contract Documents. ENGINEER's review of such certificates will be for the purpose of
determining that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract Documents and will not constitute an
independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the
requirements of the Contract Documents. ENGINEER shall be entitled to rely on the results of such tests.

13. Disagreements between OWNER and Contractor. Render formal writen decisions on all claims.of OWNER
and Coniractor relating to the acceptability of Contractor’s work or the interpretation of the requirements of the
Contract Documents pertaining to the execution and progress of Contractor’s work. In rendering such decisions,

ENGINEER shall be fair and not show partiality to OWNER or Contractor and shall not be liable in connection with
any decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.

14. Applications for Payment. Based on ENGINEER's observations as an experienced and qualified design
professional and on review of ‘Applications for Payment and accompanying supporting documentation:

a. Determine the amounts that ENGINEER recommends Contractor be paid. Such recommendations of
payment will be in writing and will constitute ENGINEER's representation to OWNER, based on such
observations and review, that, to the best of ENGINEER's knowledge, information and belief, Contractor’s work
has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of such work is generally in accordance with the Contract _ -
Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, -
to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents and to any other qualifications stated in
the recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to such payment appear to have
been fulfilled in so far as it is ENGINEER’s responsibility to observe Contractor’s work. In the case of unit price =
work, ENGINEER's recommendations of payment will include final determinations of quantities and
classifications of Contractor’s work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Contract Documents).
The responsibilities of ENGINEER contained in paragraph A1.05.A.6.a are expressly subject to the limitations set
forth in paragraph A1.05.A.6.b and other express or general limitations in this Agreement and elsewhere.

b. By recommending any payment, ENGINEER shall not thereby be deemed to have. represented that

observations made by ENGINEER to check the quality or quantity of Contractor’s work as it is performed and
" furnished have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of Contractor’s work in progress, or involved detailed

inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER in this Agreement and the
Contract Documents. Neither ENGINEER's review of Contractor’s work for the purposes of recommending
payments nor ENGINEER's recommendation of any payment including final payment will impose on ENGINEER
responsibility to supervise, direct, or control Contractor’s work in progress or for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs incident thereto, or

e, el i‘:v,: :l" -’A
“Page 5 of _9_-Pag
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



CITY OF PETAL
MINUTE BOOK 18 .- oo PAGE13G"

EXHIBIT "B"

Contractor’s compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s furnishing and performing the
Work. It will also not impose responsibility on ENGINEER to make any examination to ascertain how or for
what purposes Contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price, or to determine that title to
any portion of the work in progress, materials, or equipment has passed to OWNER free and clear of any liens,
claims, security interests, or encumbrances, or that there may not be other matters at issue between OWNER and
Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid.
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15. Contractor's Completion Documents.

a. Receive and review maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, and guarantees.

TS

-b. Receive bonds, certificates, or other evidence of insurance not previously submitted and required by the
Contract Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, Shop Drawings, Samples and other data
approved as provided under paragraph A1.05.A.10, and the annotated record documents which are to be
assembled by Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents to obtain final payment. The extent of such
ENGINEER's review will be limited as provided in paragraph A1.05.A.10. :

c. ENGINEER shall transmit these documents to OWNER.

16. Substantial Completion. Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor considers the entire Work
ready for its intended use, in company with OWNER and Contractor, conduct an inspection to determine if the Work
is Substantially Complete. If after considering any objections of OWNER, ENGINEER considers the Work ;
Substantially Complete, ENGINEER shall deliver a certificate of Substantial Completion to OWNER and Contractor. ]

17. Additional Tasks. Perform or provide the following additional Construction Phase tasks or deliverables:

18. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work. Conduct a final inspection to determine if the completed Work of
Contractor is acceptable so that ENGINEER may recommend, in writing, final payment to Contractor.
Accompanying the recommendation for finat payment, ENGINEER shall also provide a notice in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit E (the “Notice of Acceptability of Work™) that the Work is acceptable (subject to the provisions of
paragraph A1.05.A.14.b) to the best of ENGINEER's knowledge, information, and belief and based on the extent of
the services provided by ENGINEER under this Agreement.

B. Duration of Construction Phase. The Construction Phase will commence with the execution of the first -
Construction Agreement for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon written recommendation by
ENGINEER for final payment to Contractors. If the Project involves more than one prime contract as indicated in
paragraph A1.03.C, Construction Phase services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts.

C. Limitation of Responsibilities. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Contractor,
or of any of their subcontractors, suppliers, or of any other individual or entity performing or furnishing any of the Work.
ENGINEER shall not be responsible for failure of any Contractor to perform or furnish the Work in accordance with the
Contract Documents.

A1.06 - Post-Construction Phase
A. Upon written authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER, during the Post-Construction Phase, shall:
1. Provide assistance in connection with the testing and adjusting of Pfoject equipment or sy.stems.

2. Assist OWNER m training OWNER's staff to operate and maintain Project, equipment, and systems.

3. Assist OWNER in developing procedures for control of the operation and maintenance of, and record keeping
- for Project equipment and systems. :

. Page6of 2 -Pages ..
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4. Together with OWNER, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work, assist OWNER in.

consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such defects, and make recommendations
as to replacement or correction of Defective Work, if present.

5. Perform or provide the following additional Post-Construction Phase tasks or deliverables:

6. In company with OWNER or OWNER's representative, provide aa inspection of the Project within one
month before the end of the Correction Period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work is subject to correction

B. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and if not otherwise
modified in this Exhibit A, will terminate at the end of the Correction Period.

PART 2 -- ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A2.01 Additional Services Requiring OWNER's Authorization in Advance

A. If authorized in writing by OWNER, ENGINEER shall furnish or obtain from others Additional Services of the
types listed below. These services will be paid for by OWNER as indicated in Article 4 of the Agreement.

1. Prcparauon of apphcauons and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under Basic Services) for
private or governmental grants, loans or advances in connection with the Project; preparation or review of
environmental assessments and impact statements; review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements for
the Project of any such statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of
authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project.

2. Services to make measured drawings of or to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the
accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by OWNER.

3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions of the Project
designed or specified by ENGINEER or its design requirements including, but not limited to, changes in size,
complexity, OWNER'’s schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously accepted
studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Contract Documents when such revisions are required by changes in

Laws and Regulations enacted subsequent to the Effective Date of this Agreement or are due to any other causes
beyond ENGINEER's control.

4. Services resulting from OWNER's request to evaluate additional Study and Repont Phase alternative solutions
beyond those identified in paragraph A1.01.A 4.

5. Services required as a result of OWNER's providing incomplete or incorrect Project information with respect
to Exhibit B.

6. Providing renderings or models for OWNER’s use.

7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited: to,‘ detailed consideration of operations,
maintenance, and overhead expenses; the preparation of feasibility studies, cash flow and economic evaluations, rate
schedules, and appraisals; assistance in obtaining financing for the Projec:t; evaluating processes available for

licensing, and assisting OWNER in obtaining process licensing; detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and
labor; and audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed by OWNER.

8. Furnishing services of ENGINEER's Consultants for other than. Basic Services.
9. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in paragraph A1.03.C.

Page 7 of 9 *Pagés
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10. Services during out-of-town trave! required of ENGINEER other than for visits to the Site or OWNER's
office.

11. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and res
including, but not limited to, construction management, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and

constructibility review requested by OWNER; and performing or furnishing services required to revise studies,
reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other Bidding Documents as a result of such review processes.

ponding to structured independent review processes,

12. Preparing additional Bidding Documents or Contract Documents for alternate bids or prices requested by
OWNER for the Work or a portion thereof.

13. 'Determining the acceptability of substitute materials and equipment proposed during the Bidding or
Negotiating Phase when substitution prior to the award of contracts is allowed by the Bidding Documents.

14. Assistance in connection with Bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for construction, materials,
equipment, or services, except when such assistance is required by Exhibit F.

15. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work other than as required

under paragraph A1.05.A.5, and any type of property surveys or related engineering services needed for the transfer
of interests in real property; and providing other special field surveys.

16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the Contract Times set forth in Exhibit C.

17. Providing assistance in resolving any Hazardous Environmental Condition in compliance with current Laws
and Regulations.

18. Preparing and furnishing to OWNER Record Drawings showing appropriate record information based on
Project annotated record documents received from Contractor.

19. Preparation of operation and maintenance manuals.

20. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for OWNER in any litigation, arbitration or other
dispute resolution process related to the Project.

21. Providing more extensive services required to enable ENGINEER to issue notices or certifications requested
by OWNER under paragraph 6.01.G of the Agreement.

22. Other services performed or furnished by ENGINEER not otherwise provided for in this Agreement.

A2.02 Required Additional Services

A. ENGINEER shall perform or furnish, without requesting or receiving specific advance authorization from

OWNER, the Additional Services of the types listed below. ENGINEER shall advise OWNER in writing promptly after
starting any such Additional Services.

1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders to reflect changes requested by
OWNER s0 as to make the compensation commensurate with the extent of the Additional Services rendered.

2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the acceptance of substitute

materials or equipment other than “or-equal” items; and services afier the award of the Construction Agreement in
evaluating and determining the acceptability of a substitution which is found to be inappropriate for the Project or an
excessive number of substitutions.

Page 8 of 9 Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



CITY OF PETAL

MINUTE BOOK 18 PAGE 12'2'

3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a direct or indirect result
of materials, equipment, or energy shortages. EXHIBIT "B"

4. Additional or extended services during construction made necessary by (1) emergencies or acts of God
endangering the Work, (2) an occurrence of a Hazardous Environmental Condition, (3) Work damaged by fire or
other cause during construction, (4) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed work by Contractor, (5)
acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working hours, or (6) default by Contractor.

5. Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection with any partial
utilization of any part of the Work by OWNER prior to Substantial Completion.

6. Evaluating an unreasonable claim or an excessive number of claims submitted by Contractor or others in
connection with the Work.

SUGGESTED FORMAT
(for use with 1910-1, 1996 Edition)

This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of 3 pages, referred to in and
part of the Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER for
Professional Services dated

Initial:
OWNER
ENGINEER__

YWNER’s Responsibilities

srticle 2 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.
3201 In addition to other responsibilities of OWNER as set forth in this Agreement, OWNER shall:

A. Provide ENGINEER with all criteria and full information-as to OWNER's requirements for the Project, including
design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility, and expandability, and any
budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction standards which OWNER will require to be
included in the Drawings and Specifications; and furnish copies of OWNER’s standird forms, conditions, and related
documents for ENGINEER to include in the Bidding Documents, when applicable.

B. Furnish to ENGINEER any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports and data relative
to previous designs, ot investigation at or adjacent to the Site.

C. Following ENGINEER's asﬁessmeni of initially-available Project information and data and upon ENGINEER's
request, furnish or otherwise make available such additional Project related information and data as is reasonably required

to enable ENGINEER to complete its Basic and Additional Services. Such additional information or data would generally
include the following:

1. Property descriptions.

2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions.

3. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or data, including establishing relevant
reference points.

4. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site, drawings of physical conditions in
or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site, or hydrographic surveys, with '
appropriate professional interpretation thereof. !

5. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations and impact statements, and other relevant environmental or
cultural studies as to the Project, the Site, and adjacent areas. C

6. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in the Agreement or the Exhibits
thereto. : :

D. Give prompt written notice to ENGINEER whenever OWNER observes or otherwise becomes aware of a
Hazardous Environmental Condition or of any other development that affects the scope or time of performance of
ENGINEER’s services, or any defect or nonconformance in ENGINEER's services or in the work of any Contractor.

E. Authorize ENGINEER to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of Exhibit A of the Agreement as
required. .



CITY OF PETAL

MINUTE BOOK 18 oo PAGE-12F

0

EXHIBIT "B"

F. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for ENGINEER to enter upon public and private property as
required for ENGINEER to perform services under the Agreement.

G. Examine all alternate solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, proposals, and other

documents presented by ENGINEER (including obtaining advice of an attorney, insurance counselor, and other advisors or
consultants as OWNER deems appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in writing timely decisions
pertaining thereto.

H. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction to approve all

phases of the Project designed or specified by ENGINEER and such reviews, approvals, and consents from others as may
be necessary for completion of each phase of the Project.

I. Provide, as required for the Project:
1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory, independent cost estimating, and

insurance counseling services.

2. Legal services with regard to issues pertainin

g to the Project as OWNER requires, Contractor raises, or
ENGINEER reasonably requests.

3. Such auditing services as OWNER requires to ascertain how or for what purpose Contractor has used the
moneys paid.

4. Placement and payment for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications.

J. Advise ENGINEER of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants employed by OWNER to

perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not limited to, cost estimating, project peer review,.
value engineering, and constructibility review.

K. Furnish to ENGINEER data as to OWNER's anticipated costs for services to be provided by others for OWNER
so that ENGINEER may make the necessary calculations to develop and periodically adjust ENGINEER's opinion of Total
Project Costs.

L. 1f OWNER designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other than, or in addition to, ENGINEER
to represent OWNER at the Site, define and set forth as an auachment to this Exhibit B the duties, responsibilities, and

limitations of authority of such other party and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of
ENGINEER.

M. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by ENGINEER, designate a
person or entity to have authority and responsibility for coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors,
and define and set forth the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such individual or entity and the relation
thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of ENGI

N\EER as an attachment to this Exhibit B that is to be mutually
agreed upon and made a part of this Agreement before such services begin.

N. Attend the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, construction progress and
related meetings, and Substantial Completion and final payment inspections. ’

other job

O. Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perfo
Samples, materials, and equipment required by the Contract Documents,
equipment, and facilities of QWNER, prior to
interpretation thereof.

rm all inspections, tests, and approvals of

or to evaluate the performance of materials,
their incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional

P. Provide inspection or monitoring services by an individual or entity other than ENGINEER (and disclose the
identity of such individual or entity to ENGINEER) as OWNER determines necessary to verify:

Page 2 of _::’_ Pages
- (Exhibit B - OWNER's Responsibilities)
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1. That Contractor is complying with any Lam gf&ulquqp applicable to Contractor’s performing and
furnishing the Work.

2. That Contractor is taking all necessary precautions for safety of persons or property and complying with any
special provisions of the Contract Documents applicable to safety.

Q. Provide ENGINEER with the findings and reports generated by the entities providing services pursuant to
paragraphs B2.01.0 and P.

R. Perform or provide the following additional services:

SUGGESTED FORMAT
(for use with 1910-1, 1996 Edition)

This is EXHIBIT C, consisting, of 3 pages, referred to in and part

of the Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER for Profession-
al Services dated

Initial:
OWNER

’ , ENGINEER___.
Payments to ENGINEER for Services and Reimbursable Expenses

Article 4 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented

months. Stiould the Contract Times to complete the
to include the following agreement of the parties:

Work be e¢xtended beyond this period, the total

A AR YT R o st g aec ey it t e

compensation to ENGINEER shall be appropriately
ARTICLE 4 -- PAYMENTS TO THE ENGINEER adjusted.
C4.01  For Basic-Services Having-A Determined Scope -- 6. If more prime contracts are awarded for
Lump Sum Method of Payment

Work designed or specified by ENGINEER for this
Project than identified in Exhibit A, the ENGINEER
shall be compensated an additional amount equal to

s N/A for all Basic Services for each prime
contract added.

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services
set forth in Exhibit A, except for services of ENGINEER's
Resident Project Representative and Post-Construction
Phase services, if any, as follows:

AN SRR

1. A Lump Sum amount of $_10,000.00
based on the following assumed distribution of

TR A SR L L 8t

compensation: :
a. Study and Report Phase )
b. Preliminary Design Phase )
c. Final Design Phase - S
d. Bidding and Negotiating Phase S 8,000 8,000
e. Construction Phase $ 2,000

2. ENGINEER may alter the distribution of
compensation between individual phases noted herein
to be consistent with services actually readered, but
shall not exceed the total Lump Sum amount unless
approved in writing by the OWNER.

3. The Lump Sum includes compensation for
ENGINEER's services and services of ENGINEER's
Consultants, if any. Appropriate amounts have been
incorporated in the Lump Sum to account for labor,
overhead, profit, and Reimbursable Expenses.

4. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed
for ENGINEER's services will be based upon
ENGINEER's estimate of the proportion of the total

services actually completed during the billing period
to the Lump Sum.

5. The Lump Sum is conditioned on Contract
Times to complete the Work not exceeding

(Page __ 1 of 3 _3  pages
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SUGGESTED FORMAT
(for use with 1910-1, 1996 Edition)

02 For Basic Services Having An Undetermined

Scope -- Direct Labor Costs Times a Factor
Method of Payment

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for:

1. Resident Project Representative Services.
For services of ENGINEER's Resident Project
Representative, if any, under paragraph A1.05.A.2.a
of Exhibit A of the Agreement, an amount equal to
ENGINEER's Direct Labor Costs times a Factor of

2.75 for the services of ENGINEER's
employees engaged directly in resident Project
epresentation, plus Reimbursable Expenses and
NGINEER's Consultant’s charges, if any. The total

compensation under this paragraph will not exceed

$_3,000,00 , based upon Contract Times as set
forth in paragraph C4.01.

2. Post-Construction Phase Services. For
Post-Construction Phase services under paragraph
A1.06 of Exhibit A, an amount equal to the
ENGINEER's Direct Labor Costs times a Factor of

N/A for the services of ENGINEER's
employees engaged directly on the Project, plus
Reimbursable  Expenses  and ENGINEER's
Consultant’s charges, if any in the Post-Construction
Phase. The total compensation under this paragraph is
estimated to be $§_N/A .

C4.03 For Additional Services

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Additional
Services as follows:

1. General. For services of ENGINEER's
employees engaged directly on the Project pursuant to
paragraph A2.01 or A2.02 of Exhibit A of the
Agreement, except for services as a consultant or
witness under paragraph A2.01.A.20, an amount
equal to ENGINEER’s Direct Labor Costs times a
Factor of 2.75, plus Reimbursable Expenses and
ENGINEER’s Consultant’s charges, if any.

2. Serving as a Witness.  For services
performed by ENGINEER's employees as witnesses
giving testimony in any litigation, arbitration or other

legal or administrative proceeding under paragraph

A2.01.A.20, at the rate of $_750.00 per day or any

EXHIBIT "B"
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portion thereof (but compensation for time spent in
preparing to testify in any such litigation, arbitration
or proceeding will be on the basis provided in
paragraph  C4.03.A.1). Compensation  for
ENGINEER'’s Consultants for such services will be
on the basis provided in paragraph C4.05.

C4.04 For Reimbursable Expenses

A. When not included in compensation for Basic
Services under paragraph C4.01, OWNER shall pay
ENGINEER for Reimbursable Expenses as the rate set
forth in Appendix 1 of this Exhibit C.

B. Reimbursable Expenses include the following
categories:  transportation and subsistence incidental
thereto; obtaining bids or proposals from Contractor(s);
providing and maintaining field office facilities including
furnishings and utilities; subsistence and transportation of
Resident Project Representative and their assistants; toll
telephone calls and telegrams; reproduction of reports,
Drawings, Specifications, Bidding Documents, and similar
Project-related items in addition to those required under
Exhibit A, and, if authorized in advance by OWNER,
overtime work requiring higher than regular rates. In
addition, if authorized in advance by OWNER,
Reimbursable Expenses will also include expenses incurred

for computer time and the use of other highly specialized
equipment.

C. The amounts payable to ENGINEER for
Reimbursable Expenses will be the Project-related internal
expenses actually incurred or allocated by ENGINEER,
plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses ailocable
to the Project, the latter multiplied by a Factor of 1.25

D. The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be
adjusted annually (as of N/A ) to reflect equitable
changes in the compensation payable to ENGINEER.

C4.05 For ENGINEER 's Consultant’s Charges

A. Whenever compensation to ENGINEER herein is
stated to include charges of ENGINEER'’s Consultants,
those charges shall be the amounts billed by ENGINEER's
Consultants to ENGINEER times a Factor of 1.25

Pagc2 of 3 pages
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C4.06 Direct Labor Costs estimates for planning purposes, are not binding on
the parties, and are not the minimum or maximum
A. Direct Labor Costs means salaries and wages paid amounts payable to ENGINEER under the
to ENGINEER's employees but does not include payroll Agreement.
related costs or benefits.
. 2. When estimated compensation amounts have
B. The Direct Labor Costs and the Factor applied to becn stated herein and it subsequently becomes
Direct Labor Costs will be adjusted annually (as of apparent to ENGINEER that a compensation amount
—N/A___ ) to reflect equitable changes in compensation thus estimated will be exceeded, ENGINEER shall
payable to ENGINEER. give OWNER written notice thereof. Promptly
: thereafier OWNER and ENGINEER shall review the
4.07  Factors matter of services remaining to be performed and
compensation for such services. OWNER shall either
A. The Direct Labor Costs Factor includes the cost agree to such compensation exceeding said estimated
of customary and statutory benefits including, but not amount or OWNER and ENGINEER shall agree to a
limited to, social security contributions, unemployment, reduction in the remaining services to be rendered by
excise and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health ENGINEER, so that total compensation for such
and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation, and services will not exceed said estimated amount when
holiday pay applicable thereto; the cost of general and such services are completed. If ENGINEER exceeds
administrative overhead, which includes salaries and wages the estimated amount before OWNER and
of principals and employees engaged in business operations ENGINEER have agreed to an increase in the
not directly chargeable to projects, plus non-Project compensation due ENGINEER or a reduction in the
operating costs, including but not limited to, business remaining services, the ENGINEER shall be paid for
taxes, legal, rent, utilities, office supplies, insurance, and all services rendered hereunder.
other operating costs; plus operating margin or profit.
B. External  Reimbursable Expenses  and
ENGINEER's Consultant’s Factors include ENGINEER's
overhead and profit associated with ENGINEER's
responsibility for the administration of such services and
costs.
C4.08 Other Provisions Concerning Paymen:
A. Progress Payments. The portion of the amounts
billed for ENGINEER's services which are identified in
paragraphs C4.02 and C4.03, will be based on the Direct
Labor Costs for the cumulative hours charged to the
Project during the billing period by all of ENGINEER's
employees, times the Applicable Direct Labor Costs
Factor, plus Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's
Consultant’s charges, if any.
B. Extended Contract Times. Should the Contract
Times to complete the Work be extended beyond the .
period -identified in paragraph C4.01, payment for
ENGINEER's services on the basis of the Direct Labor
Costs Times a Factor Method of Payment shall be
continued,
C. Estimated Compensation Amounts.
1. ENGINEER's estimate of the amounts that
will become payable for Basic Services are only
Page 3 of3 pages °-
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EXHIBIT D

STANDARD HUD CONTRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS

Audit and Inspection of Records - The CONSULTANT shall
permit the authorized representatives of the OWNER, the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the
Comptroller General of the United States to inspect and
audit all data and records of the CONSULTANT relating to
his performance under the contract. ’

Interest of Members of or Delegates to Congress - No
member of or delegate to the Congress of the United
States shall be admitted to any share of part of this
contract or to any benefit arising therefrom.

Prohibited Interest - No member, officer, or employee
of the Public Body or of a local public body during his
tenure or one year thereafter shall have any interest,

direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds
thereof.

Equal Employment Oppportunity - In connection with the
execution of this contract, the CONSULTANT shall not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, religion, color, sex or
national origin., The CONSULTANT shall take affirmative
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during their employment without
regard to their race, religion, color, sex or national
origin. Such actions shall include, but not be limited
to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising;
layoff, or termination; rates of pay, or other forms of

compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship.

Minority Business Enterprise - In connection with the
performance of this contract, the CONSULTANT will
cooperate with the project sponsor in meeting his
compitments and goals with regard tot he maximum
utilization of minority business enterprises and will
use its best efforts to ensure that minority business
enterprises shall have maximum practicable opportunity
to compete for subcontract work under this contract.

Nothing in this contract shall be construed as
obligating the CONSULTANT to appear in litigation or
prepare for such in behalf of the OWNER except in
consideration of additional compensation.

''''''
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This contract may be amended or terminated by written-
agreement of both parties. No oral representations by
employees of the CONSULTANT shall affect or modify any
of the terms or obligations contained ip this contract
and none of the provisions of this agreement shall be
held to be waived or modified by reason of any act
whatsoever éxcept as.mutually agreed in writing,

To the greatest extent feasible, the CONSULTANT shall
provide opportunities for training and employment to

low income residents of the Project area; and shall ,
award contracts for work in connection with the Project

- to eligible business concerns, in or owned in

substantial part by, persons residing in the area of the
Project.
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EXHIBIT BTO AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND
ENGINEER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. dated
19__ (for use with No. 1910-1, 1984 Edition).

A LISTING OF THE DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND
LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF THE RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE. .

This is an Exhibit attached to. made a part of and incorporated by reference with the Agreement made on 01/Q3
19__95 betweenCITY OF PETAL AND SHOWS,DEARMAN&GWAITS,INOWNER)and (ENGINEER)
providing for professional engineering services.

ENGINEER shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (RPR), assistants and other field staff to assist
ENGINEER in observing performance of the work of Contractor.

Through more extensive on-site observations of the work in progress and field checks of materials and equipment
by the RPR and assistants. ENGINEER shall endeavor to provide further protection for OWNER against defects
and deficiencies in the work of CONTRACTOR: but. the furnishing of such services will not make ENGINEER
responsible for or give ENGINEER control over construction means. methods. techniques. sequences or procedures
or for safety precautions or programs. or responsibility for CONTRACTOR's failure to perform the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents and in particular the specific limitations set forth in paragraph 1.6 of the
Agreement are applicable.

The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of ENGINEER in ENGINEER's agreement with
the OWNER and in the construction Contract Documents. and are further limited and described as follows:

A. General

RPR is ENGINEER's agent at the site. will act as directed by and under the supervision of ENGINEER. and
will confer with ENGINEER regarding RPR’s actions. RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the on-site work
shall in generul be with ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR keeping OWNER advised as necessary. RPR's dealings
with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and approval of CONTRACTOR. RPR shall
generally communicate with OWNER with the knowledge of and under the direction of ENGINEER.

B. Duties and Responsibilities of RPR

1. Schedules: Review the progress schedule. schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and schedule of values
prepared by CONTRACTOR and consult with ENGINEER concerning acceptability.

. Conferences und Meetings: Attend meetings with CONTRACTOR. such as preconstruction conferences.
progress meetings. job conferences and other project-related meetings. and prepare and circulate copies
of minutes thereof.

19

3. Liaison:
a. Serve as ENGINEER's liaison with CONTRACTOR. working principally through CONTRACTOR's
superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract Documents: and assist ENGINEER
in serving as OWNER's liaison with CONTRACTOR when CONTRACTOR's operations affect OWN-

ER’s on-site operations.

b. Assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details or information. when required for proper execution
of the Work.
4. Shop Drawings and Samples:
a. Record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples.

b. Receive samples which are furnished at the site by CONTRACTOR, and notify ENGINEER of avail-
ability of samples for examination.

c. Advise ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR of the commencement of any Work requiring a Shop Drawing
or sample if the submittal has not been approved by ENGINEER.
5. Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work. Inspections and Tests:
a. Conduct on-site observations of the Work in progress to assist ENGINEER in determining if the Work
" is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.

b. Report to ENGINEER whenever RPR believes that any Work is unsatisfactory. faulty or defective or
does not conform to the Contract Documents. or has been damaged. or does not meet the requirements

viil
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of any inspection. test or approval required to be made; and zdvise ENGINEER of Work that RPR
believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for observation. or requires special
testing. inspection or approval. .

c. Verify that tests. equipment and systems startups and operating and maintenance training are conducted ..

in the presence of appropriate personnel. and that CONTRACTOR maintains adequate records thereof:

and observe, record and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the test procedures and
startups. :

d. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the Project,
record the results of these inspections and report to ENGINEER.

Interpretation of Contract Documents: Report to ENGINEER when clarifications and interpretations of

the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to CONTRACTOR clarifications and interpretations as
issued by ENGINEER.

. Mbdiﬁca!ions: Consider and evaluate CONTRACTOR's suggestions for modifications in Drawings or

Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to ENGINEER. Transmit to CONTRACTOR
decisions as issued by ENGINEER.

Records:

a. Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence. reports of job_conferences. Shop Drawings
and samples. reproductions of original Contract Documents including all Work Directive Changes.
Addenda. Change Orders. Field Orders. additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the
Contract. ENGINEER's clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents. progress reports.
and other Project related documents.

b. Keep a diary or log book. recording CONTRACTOR hours on the job site. weather conditions. data
relative 10 questions of Work Directive Changes. Change Orders or changed conditions. list of job site
visitors. daily activities. decisions. observations in general. and specific observations in more detail as
in the case of observing test procedures: and send copies to ENGINEER.

¢. Record names. addresses and telephone numbers of all CONTRACTORS. subcontractors and major
suppliers of materials and equipment.

. Reports:

a. Furnish ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of CONTRACTOR's
compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Dirawing and sample submittals.

b. Consult with ENGINEER in advance of scheduled major tests. inspections or start of important phases
of the Work.

c. Draft proposed Change Orders and Work Directive Changes. obtaining backup material from CON-
TRACTOR and recommend to ENGINEER Change Orders. Work Directive Changes. and Field Orders.

d. Report immediately to ENGINEER and OWNER upon the oczurrence of any accident.

. Payment Requests: Review applications for payment with CONTRACTOR for compliance with the estab-

lished procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to ENGINEER. noting partic-
ularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values. Work completed und materials
and equipment delivered at the site but not incorporated in the Work.

. Certificates, Maintenance and Operation Manuals: During the course of the Work. verify that certificates,

maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be assembled and furnished by CON-
TRACTOR are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents.

and have this material delivered to ENGINEER for review and forwarding to OWNER prior to final
payment for the Work.

. Completion:

a. Before ENGINEER issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion. submit to CONTRACTOR a list of
observed items requiring completion or correction.

b. Conduct final inspection in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER. and CONTRACTOR and prepare
a final list of items to be completed or corrected.

c. Observe that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make recommendations to
ENGINEER concerning acceptance.
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C. Limitations of Authority

Resident Project Representative:

1.

(£

W

Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment,
unless authorized by ENGINEER.

Shall not exceed limitations of ENGINEER's authority as set forth in the Agreement or the Contract
Documents.

Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of CONTRACTOR, subcontractors or CONTRACTOR's
superintendent.

Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods.
techniques, sequences or procedures of construction unless such advice or directions are specifically
required by the Contract Documents.

Shall not advise on. issue directions rezardmg or assume control over safety precautions and programs in
connection with the Work.

Shall not accept Shop Drawing or sample submittals from anyone other than CONTRACTOR..
Shall not authorize OWNER to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by others except as
specifically authorized by ENGINEER.
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Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment,
unless authorized by ENGINEER.

Shall not exceed limitations of ENGINEER's authority as set forth in the Agreement or the Contract
Documents.

Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of CONTRACTOR, subcontractors or CONTRACTOR's
superintendent.

Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume contrcl over any aspect of the means, methods.
techniques, sequences or procedures of construction unless such advice or directions are specifically
required by the Contract Documents.

Shall not advise on. issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions and programs in
connection with the Work.

Shall not zfccept Shop Drawing or sample submittals from anyone other than CONTRACTOR.
Shall not authorize OWNER to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by others except
specifically authorized by ENGINEER.
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

The Institute for Wellness & Sports Medicine agrees to provide a

qualified aerobics instructor to lead a low-intensity aerobics class

T Ry

designed for the senior population. This class will be held Monday,
Wednesday, and Friday, from 9:00 a.m. until 10:00 a.m. at the Petal
Community Center. Customary holidays will be observéd w1th ample
prior notice of class cancellation. The Institute for Wellness & Sports

Medicine will bill the City of Petal on a monthly basis at a rate of $15

per class.



COUNTY OF FORREST EXHIBIT "D"

GROUND LEASE

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises,
covenants, and conditions set forth herein the
undersigned Martha McKenzie Hamilton, ,does hereby agree
to let, demise, and lease the following described real

P

property to the City of Petal, Mississippi, the legal
description of which is as follows:

BEG 630 FT W NEC NE 1/4 SE 1/4 W 395 PT S 295 FT W
295 FT TO RD SELY ALG RD 956 FT TO CENTER CORINTH RD
NELY ALG RD 440 FT N 1026 FT TO BEG S .0367.05N R 13 W
FORREST COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI LESS ANBINIEEST THE 4.466
ACRES DEEDED TO THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

TERM: The ¢term of this Lease is for one Yyear
beginning January 1, 1999.

ANNUAL RENTAL: The rental payment required to be
paid by the city of Petal, Lessee, to Martha Hamilton,

Lessor, is the sum of Seven Hundred ($700.00) per year,

to be paid on or before January 1, 1999, and on a like

date for any renewals or extensions thereof.

"RENEWALS OR EXTENSIONS: Lessee, City of Petal, is
hereby granted an option to }enew this Lease on an
annual basis, by giving to the Lessor, notice of thirty
(30) days prior to the termination of any yearly term
advising of its intention to renew the Lease.

CANCELLATION: Lessor, Martha McKenzie Hamilton,
reserves the right to cancel the lease at any time
during its original term or renewal term, by giving to
the Lessee City of Petal, thirty (30) days written
notice. Annual rentals on a prorate basis.

IMPROVEMENTS: Lessee, the City of Petal, has the
right to construct on the leased prenises any
improvements, and to remove any improvement or
structures from the leased premises upon the termination
or cancellation of this Lease.

INDEMNITY: buring the term of the original
rental, and any subsequent renewals, the City of Petal,
Mississippi, as occupier of the premises, will assume

liability for the use and occupancy of said premises.

08091 352
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WITNESS THE SIGNATURES OF THE PARTIES ON THIS, THE

/9 — npavo A.D., 1999.

LESSEE

ATTEST:

Priscilla C. Daniel
City Clerk

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

COUNTY OF FORREST

" Personally came and appgared before me, the
undersigned authority, in and for the state and county
aforesaid, Martha McKenzie Hamilton, who stated that she
executed and delivered the above and foregoing
instruments as her free and voluntary act and deed, on
the day and date therein set forth.

THIS, the ]qﬂ\ day of s ons ,

\)

A.D., 1999.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires: Lok OF

TRt I
FORREST COL‘-h""
\ COMMISSIOM FYPIRES ALTUST 13, 200? | CERT IFY\ THIS INSTR
") WEX ; WAS FILED AND RECC: u)%D

1999 JAN 22 P 2: 52

i4 REC. BK. AXD PAGE OR U.C.C.
FILE KO. AS SHOWN
\&’lTNESS MY HAND AND SEAL

~..T:~J,M7 a. */WL

m.ll;‘ YAFRY CLERK
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WHEREAS, in 1872 Sterling Morton proposed to the
Nebraska Board of Agriculture that a special day be
set aside for the planting of trees, and

WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first
observed with the planting of more than a million
trees in Nebraska, and

WHEREAS, trees are a valuable resource giving us
paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our fires and
countless other wood products, and

WHEREAS, trees in our City increase property values,
enhance the economic vitality of business areas and
beautify our community, and

WHEREAS, trees, wherever they are planted are a
source of joy and spiritual renewal, ard

WHEREAS, Petal desires to continue its tree planting
ways,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Aldermen and I, Jack
Gay, Mayor of the city of Petal, Mississippi, do
hereby proclaim February 12th, 1999 as

ARBOR DAY

in the city of Petal, and urge all citizens to

support efforts to protect our trees and woodlands
and to support our City’s Urban Forestry Program.
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